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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544  1-800-882-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2664 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

Kafja 8. Fox
Director
May 7, 2024
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with The Granite Young Men's
Christian Association (VC #154139), Manchester, NH, to continue providing a physical fitness
and wellness reimbursement benefit program for active NH military personnel and their families
by exercising a contact renewal option, by increasing the price limitation by $400,000 from
$400,000 to $800,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30,
2025, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor
Commission Fund).

The original contract was approved by Govemnor and Council on August 23, 2023, (item
#27).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

06-96-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION 100% Other Funds (Governor Commission Fund)

[State | . | increased .
. Class / Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Year Account Number | Budget Asmaind Budget
2024 | 102/500731 | CONracts forFrog | 62058501 | $400,000 $0 | $400,000
2025 | 102/500731 | Contracts for Prog | g2058501 $0|  $400,000 | $400,000
Total $400,000 $400,000 | $800,000
EXPLANATION

The Department is exercising an available option to renew this contract. This request is
Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements originally approved as
sole source to be identified as sole source. The Depariment is implementing the funding actions
recommended and approved, on December 15, 2023, by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol
and Other Drugs. The Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission in
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‘His Excellency; Govemor ChﬂMopher T, Sunimu
“and ihe Honorable Councll
Page 2.0f 2

accordance with' RSA 12-J. The Contractor fs able to provide this physical fitness and wellfiéss
program to mllrlaryr personnel and their families due to the presence of its member organlzatlons
‘and extensive, history of serving milstary personnel throughout the state.

‘The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing a physical fitness and
wellness reimbursement program for active NH military personnel who otherwise wouk not have
the benefit. Rigorous. schedules and frequent deployment can add stressors to the, lives of New
Hampshire. military personnel resulting in behavioral health condition such as dapress:on anxiety
and substaince misuse.

Studies indicate that active, ‘military - personnel and veterans face unique stressars and
often'do not seek help for behavioral health issues due to stigma and shame. According to the
National Institute.on Drug Abuse, the binge drinking rate is high among military personnel 18 to
25 years of age as compared to the general population. Physical activity and wellness programs
have beén proven to help mitigate stress and increase oversll physical and behaviora! health.

:Approximately 1,575 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2025. To date
over 900 individuals have been served by this program,

The Department will continue to ‘monitor services through the review of quarterty reporte
. to ensure contract deliverables are met.

‘As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the' original,
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services forone
(1) Year of the five (5) Years available. .

Should the Goverror and Counctl not authonze this request, active NH military personnel
may not have access to a program that supports their wellbeing and reductions in stress levels
and use of Unhealthy coping mechanisms, including substance misuse.

‘Area served: Statewide..

In the event the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will ‘not.be
requested to support this program.

: Respectfully submitted,

‘s

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

Thé Deperiment of Health and Hirman Services' Mission (s lo join conimunities and families
in providing oppartunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence.:
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Physical Fithess and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Military
Personnel and their Families contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services("State” or "Department”) and The Granite Young Men’s Christian Association
("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant ta an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 23, 2023 (ltem #27), the Contractor agreed to perform certain-services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$800,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditdres incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget Sheet through Exhibit C-2 Budget Sheet, Amendment #1.

4. Add Exhibit C-2, Budget Sheet, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

[+1:]

MmS
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-5-1.3 _ Contracstc}r3 Ifi/tials

20727
$5-2024-DBH-25-PHYSI-01-A01 Page 10of3 Date
v7.12.23 ‘ -
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands és of the date written befow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

I DocuSigned by:
5/31/2024 Elzaﬂa S. Fop
— 2 ECTDS1684F3...
Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title:

Director

- The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Doculigned by:
5/31/2024 : Midule Slagpard
Date Nar;g:'mﬂ%ﬁ%e Sheppard
Title:  cgo
i
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-5-13
$S-2024-DBH-25-PHYS!I-01-A01 Page 2 of 3

v. 71223
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‘The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

. DocuSigned by:
5/31/2024 Eﬁmjﬂ, Gunnno
. T4BTI4B44941400... i
- Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title:  attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of .
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date " "Name:

Title:
1
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S5-1.3
$8-2024-DBH-25-PHYSI-01-A01 Page 3 of 3

v.7.12.23
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Exhibit C-2 Budget Sheet, Amendment #1 §5-2024-DBH-25-PHYSI-01-A01

HNew Hampshire Departmant of Haalth and Human Services

© b e eyt S v 5

Coniractor Name: The Granlte Young Men's Chvistisn Associslion b '
Budgel Requsst for: Physical Fitnoss & Weilness Reimbursement Benefit Progrem
Budget Period July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 (SFY 2025) :
Indirect Cost Rate (I epplicable) 1.17% j i

Line ftem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS |
1. Salary & Wages a £26,000

2. Fringe Benefits $5,500
3. Consultants J $3.500

4. Equipmen i
Indlcact cost rata cannot be applled to squipment costs par 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV lo
2 CFR 200. .

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

1) ey - Lab ] $250:
S.4c! s - Phamacy
5.(d} Supplies - Mecical =

Sie) Supolies Office [

8. Trawel

E

7. Soltware

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communi
8. (b) Other - Education and Tralning
8. (c) Othar . Other {spacify balow)

52,400

Marksling

$350.712
Wallness Relmbursement

Other {plaase spocity}

Other {please speciiy)
9. Subrecipient Contracts :

Total Dirsct Costs ) $395.382

Total Indireci Costs £4,838

TOTAL $400,000

Co}\tractor Initlals

5/31/2024

Page 101 Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

. ‘CERTIFICATE

L, David M.'Scanlan, Sééretary of State of the State of New Hampsmre do hereby centify that THE GRANITE YOUNG MEN'S
CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION is § Kew Hampihire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on.
May 09, 1896. I further certify that all-fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and i in
good standing as far as this offiée is Corcémed.

Business ID: 61724
Certificate Number: 0005833596

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
I hereto sét my Liatid and caise to bé affixed
‘the Seal of thé State of Néw Hampshire,

* this 21st day of July AD. 2022,

David M. Séiinfan

‘Seéretiiry of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, : : .. _Ryan Gadow hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corparation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

f .
1. I'am a'duly Officer of The Granite Young Men's Chilstian Association
o (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a liue copy of a vote taken at'a mesting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 25; 2021, at which & quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

{Date)
VOTED: Michele Sheppard, Chief Executive Officer _ (méy list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract-Signatory)
I duly authorized on behalf of The Granite Young } fen's Christian Association 1o enfer into contracts or agreements
with the State {Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencles or departmerits -and, further is authorizéd to executs any ‘and all
documents, agreements and other Instruriients, and any amendments, revislons, -or modifications thereto, which
maj in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to-effect the purpose of this vote.

3, | hereby certify that said vote has'not been amended. or repealed.and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which-this certificate Is attached. This authority was vatid thirty (30) .
days prior to and remalns valid-for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that It s understood that the State of New Hampshiré wifl rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed_above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on thé authority of -any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with

" the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly- hergjt.

Dated:5-:29-24

lame; Ryan Gadow -
itle: Chief Operating Officer

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD. RTIFICA

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

GRANIYMC '

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
5/29/2024

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S 1ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
. CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIQNAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and qondhions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

' PRODUCER
USl Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

GRNIACT {inda Jaeger, CIC

PONE . £xy); 855 874-0123 | A, Mo

b 5. linda.jaeger@usi.com

: ADDRESS;
Ba_dford, NH 03110 [ = INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855 874-0123 INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity tnsurance Co. 18058
INSURED NSURER B : Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC
The Granite YMCA
INSURER G :
670 N. Commerical St., Suite 103
INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03101
INSURER E :
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO GERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES-CF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
,CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TEAMS,
"EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iy TYPE OF INSURANCE .‘g'«,{éhﬁ;”v%“ POLICY NUMBER (y_g_ut)%fvvvv) (’:'%%c ¥ LTS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X |{ X [PHPK2557788 06/01/2024(06/01/2025 EACH OCCUARENCE 51,000,000
J CLAIMS-MADE EI OCCUR ' BANARE (RS e | $100,000
| MED EXP (Any one person) | 35,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
E\I'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
___{PoLicy El 5:?& D LOC PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG_ | $3,000,000
OTHER: - ° ) §
A | AUTOMOBILE LABILITY X | X |PHPK2557791 06/01/2024|06/01/2025 FONEOSNGLELMIT | 1,000,000
X| any auTto BODILY INJURY (Per parson} | $
: gm%EsD ONLY SCU}?EOULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
X iR oy [X] SRR N R
$
A | _X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | OCCUR X | X |PHUB865168 06/01/2024 | 06/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000 °
" EXCESSLIAB . CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 5,000,000
DED | X’ RETENTION $$ 10K ) ! s
B} [[EoREERscau AT HCHS20240000574 01/01/2024(01/01/2028 X [8hne | I5F
BEE.EES&T%%%’BHEEE’EXECUT'VE - 3A States: NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
{Mandstory in NH] E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $1,000,000
If yes, dasctibe und .
DESCAIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L, DISEASE - poLICY LmiT | 51,000,000
A |Professional PHPK2557788 06/01/2024(06/01/2025 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident
Liability $3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached it moro space Is required}
Additional Insured Status is provided only when required by a written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept., of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY Of THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POlLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS, |

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

D D ey

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of1
#544895298/M44891655

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and fogo are registered marks of ACORD

T8PZP
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Mlsswn Statement

The Gramte YMCA creates a community where all are welcome and builds a

healthy spirit,. mind and body based on the:values of caring, honesty, respect,
~and responsnblhty

FOR YOUTH OEVELOPMENT®

FOR HEALTHY LIVING

"FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

THE GRANITE YMCA
ASSOCIATION OFFICE

670 North Commercial Strect
Manchaster, NH 03101

P 603.782.2801

F 603, ?92 0011 -
www.graniteymea,org

YMEA OF DOWNTOWN,
‘MANCHESTER

-30 Machanic Stroat-

‘Manchester, NH 03101

P 503.623.3558

f 603.623:5934
Www.graniteymca,org/manchester

. YMCAALULARD CENTER
- OB GOFFSTOWN

1116 Goffstown Back Road
Goffstown, NH 03045

P 603,497, 4563

F 603,497.4837
www.granitaymca.org/fgotfstown

¥MCA OF GREATER
LONDONDERRY
205 Rockingham Road

.Londonderry, NH 03053

P603.437.9622
F 603.437.1169 | 4
wwi.graniteymea.org/londendarry

YMCA OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
.35 tndustrial Way

Rochester, NH 03857
PE03.332.7334
£603,332.7349 .
www.graniteymea org/rochestar

YMCA OF THE SEACOAST
'550 Pevarly Hill Réad
Portsmouth, NH 03801

‘P 603.431,2334

F 603.431.1314
www gramuym:a org/portsmouth

'YHCA ‘OF EONCORD

IS Narth State Straet
Com:ord NH D330%
P503.228.9522

F 603.220.5352 .

Veww.granliaymeaorg/contord

“YMCA CAMPING SERVICES

Camp Mi-To-Na for Boy.
ump Foss tor Girls
P603,232.8642
www.campmitena.org
wyw.eamploss.org
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THE GRANITE YMCA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. MAY 31,2022
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HESSION & PARE, v
o N B } g
‘CERTIFIEN PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
6 Siark Steect, Manchester, New Hanyshire 031401
603:660-5477 FAX 6U3-669:0197

'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
The Grenite YMCA

-

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Granite YMCA (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the 'staternent of financial position as ‘'of May 31, 2022, and.
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, -and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related fiotes to the financial statenients.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above:present-fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Granite YMCA as of May 31, 2022, ‘and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then-ended in accordance with accounting -
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with'duditing: standards generally accepted in the
“United States of America. Our responsibilities underithose standards are furthier described in
the Auditor’s Responéibilities for the Audit of the Fihancial Statermments section of our report.
We are required_to be independent of The Granite YMCA and to mieét our other ethical
“‘rés'l‘nonsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is Sufficient arid:appropriate to provide
.a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

“Management is responsible for the, preparation and fair presentation of the financial
Statements in accordance’with accounting principles génerally accepted.in the United States
.of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relévant

to the preparation‘and fair préséntation of financial statements that are free from.material

misstatement, whether.due to fraud or error..
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-fooatd.-of Trustees,
“The Granite Y MCA

In preparmg ‘the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are-
condmons or -events, considered in the aggregate, that raisé substaritial doubt about The,
‘Granite ' YMCA’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after thi¢-date that
‘the financial staternents are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stateménts,

‘Ouit objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, afid to issiie an
audltor s report that includes our-opinion, Reasonable assurance is 2 }ugh level of, assurance
‘but.is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an gudit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always defect' 8 material,
mlsstatcrnent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement fesulting from
fraiid.is highet than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, mlsreprcscntatlons or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are ‘considered :material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually ‘or-in: the
aggregatc ‘they would. influence the judgment made by a rcasonable iiser based on the
‘financial statements.

In p‘cffomﬁn_g*'an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we::

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit,

‘s Identify and assess. the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures’ résponsive
to those risks. Such procedurés include examining, on a test bams .evidence rcgardmg
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

‘s Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to dcmgn
~audit procedures that are appropriate in the circimstances, but not for.the purpose of
expressing an opinion.on the effectiveness of The Granite YMCA’s mtemal control.
' Accordingly, no such opinion is'expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accountmg policiés used and the reasonableness of
sxgmﬁcant ‘accounting estimates made by . management, as well ds evaluaté ‘the
overall presentation’of the financial statements. , X

e Conclude Wwhether, in our judgment, there are conditions of events, considered in'the:
aggregate that raise substantial doubt about The Granite YMCA's’ ablllty to Continue
as a going concern for a feasonable’ period of time.
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Board of Trustees
The Granite YMCA

We are required to Corfrmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
ofher matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, sipnificant audit findings, and
certdin internal ‘control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparaﬁvc‘lnformation

We have previously audited The :Granite YMCA’s 2021 financial stateménts, and:we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those-audited financial statements in our-report
dated October 19,72021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year eided Junie 30, 2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with.
the audited financial statemen(s froni-which it has been derived..

Manchester, New Hampshire; _ , ] _
October 20,2022.  ° /\JLZQM‘ / : MV&
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-4~
THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL FOSITION
:As of May 31, 2022 and 2021

-ASSETS

~

Current asstts
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable <
Pledges receivable, net
Prepaid expenscs and other nssets

Tola! current assets

Investments, at ﬁ;il:jv‘_nILic .

Long:term pledges recelvable; less current portion
Work in progress

Property, plant and equipment, nct

Cash surrender valuc of life insurance policy-
Beneficial interest in trusts

Total assets'

2022 202),
s 7,781,472 $ 5,098,834
45,902 43,400
394,944 2,037,484
100,793 139,701
237,874 154,605
8,560,985 7,474,024
14,732,557 15,421,940
159,912 160,550
248,026 .
16,001,946 13,613,162
22,170 .-
2,322,308 1,866,612

$ 38,536,288

§ 42,147,904

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current lisbilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenve.
Grani obligation -
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current linbilities

Long-term debt, nét'of current poition and unamortized
deferred financing costs
Long-tem interest rale swap

Total liabilities

Net asseis
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
‘Board-designated. .
Total without doror restrictions

With donorrestrictions
— Restricted by purposc or.time,
Restricted in perpeluily
=~ +Total with donorrestrictions
Toatal nct asscts,

Total liabilitics and nct asscls

See notés 1o financial statements..

s 413,232

$ 499,020
417,529 272,345 -
3,365,720 2,799,687
608,130 C-
437,488 2,531,763
5,252,099 6,102,815
4,029,410 3,830,855
92,192 198,939
9,373,701 10,132,600
13,408,047 10,483,860
£,692,573 6,884,345
20,100,620 17,368,205
6,240,809 4695321
6,432,774 16,340,153
12,673,583 11,035,474
32,774,203 28,403,619

- §_42,147904

$§ 38,536,288
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THE GRANITE YMCA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Far the Vear Ended Mny 31,2022

Without Donat ~ With Doner

_ Restrictions___ Restrictions Total
‘Operating ucliv;'iie:-
‘Public support
Annual campaign income s 710532 § L 8 sy
Governmenl subsidics 12,184,243 2,412,085 ° 4,593,328
Granl income : 450,454 104,641 1855,095
In-kind contribulions 148,099 - 148,099
United Way ellocation 239,902 - .239,902
Net asscts released from restriciions - operating octivitics 1,734,156 . (1,734,156) -
Teta) public suppon »5,464,386 782,570 6,246,956
Revenuc ' . ' g
Progrem and camp fees 12,719,754 - 12,719,754
Membership dues 4,275,756, . 4275356
] Less financial assistance ’ (1,336227} . {1,336,227)
Nel pragram, camp fees & membership dues 15,659,283 - 15,659,283
Merchandise sales 151,393 . 151,393
Rental income 206,.’24‘7 - 206,547
Invesunent income, endowment approprialion - 382432 332,432
Totel revenue 16,017,223 382,432 16,399,655
Total public support and revenve 20481600 1,165,002 22,646,611
Expenses
Program services
Youth development 14,440,955 . 14,440,955
Healthy living 3,951,219 . 13,951,219
Sociat responsibility’ _ 952226 ° . 932,226
Tolal progriém services : 19,344,400 . . - 19344400
“Supporting services o
Fundraising 431,628 . 431,628
Management 1,141,916 - 1,141,916
Tota} supporling ssrvices 1,573,544 o 1,573 544 -
Total expenges 20917944 . 20,917,944
Inicrease in nel assels from opcrations . 563665 1165002 1,728,667
Non-operating attivitics ) ‘
et assels released from eestrictions - capital e;c'pendilurcs 1204,692 (204,692) H
Contributions for capital asicls . 404,644 404,644
Government gronts for capita) asscls 150,039 150,039,
Contribution for endowment ) . 92,569 92,569
Investment incoine, net of endowrnent appropriation - {286,902) (951,269} (1,238,171)
Changa in besicficial nterest in trust, net of allowance 9,808 (68.751) (58,248)
Unreelized gain on carrying valie of interesi . ' o
ralc swap contiset 106,741 .- 106,747
Other ' . {10,735) - = {10,735)
Total non-pperating aclivitics 123,607 (577.462) (SSJ,SS?)V
Incsease in nel dssets before aoquisition s12m 587.540° 1,174,812
lIncofne from acquisitidn 2045043 1050569 3105703
I | 7 B . ol
Inérease in net psscls 2732415 1,638,109 4,370,524
‘Net assets, beginning of year _ 17068205 11035474 18,403,679,
Net sssels, end of year $ 20,100,620 $12673,583 " S 32,774,209

Scc'notes to financish stotements,
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended May 31,2021

,Opcrating octivitics
_Public support
Annual campaign income
Governinent subsidies
Qrant income
In-kind contributions
United Way allocation
Ne1 assets released from restrictions - opa‘almg ucllvuies
' Tota). public support

[Revenue -
Program and camp fees
Membership ducs
Less financial assisiance
Net program, camp fees & membership ducs

Mcrchnnd:sc sales

Rental i mcomc

Imcslment lncomc. cndo\vmcm appropriation
~Total revenue.

Total public support and revenue

Expenscs
Pragram scivices L
Youth development
Healthy tiving
Social responsibility
“Tolal program services

Supparting services
Fundraising,
Management
“Tatal supporting services

Tatal expenses
(Deerense) increase in net ossets from operations

Nm-opcranng activities
" Net pssels released from restrictions - capital etpcnduturcs
Comrlbuuons for capital assels
*Contribution for enduwm:nt
Inveéstitent income, nel of endawment appropriation
Change in beneficial intesest in trust, net of allowance
Unveatized gain of corrying valud of intcrest
. .rate sywop contract
_Olher
Tolal nnn-opcrnung actiwllcs

‘Incredse in el assets
:Nei assels, beginning of yeer

Nei asses, eiid of year

- Sce notes 10 financial statements.

“Without Donor

with Donor -
Restriclions  'Restrictions Total
s . s 77880 5 727,880
- 4,172,59% 4,172,596
2 807,975 807,975
59,634 . 59,634
- 434.40‘6‘ 4, 406
6,174,577 (6.1745171)
6,234,211 '(31,720) f§.202_,49|
6,567,769 P 6,567,769
2,825,621 . 2,825,621
(947,809) 5 '(947,809)
8,445,381 : §,445,58]
39,702 . 139,702
201,520 - 201,520
2,517 341,900 314,417
8,689,320 311,900 .. 5,001,220
14,923,531 280,180 15,203,711
9,632,404 x /9,632,404
3,086,477 ] 3,086,477
1,108,548 . e 1,108,348
13,827,429 x 13,827,429
334,219 = 334,219
942 670 i 942,670
1,276,889 1:216,889
15,104,318 . 15,104,318
(180,787) 280,180 199,393
17,500  (117,500) -
- 284,159 284,159
- 28,585 ;28,585
1,292,948 1,493,305 2,786,253
< 301287 '301,257
o 76,149 - ©76,149
1,889.821. | 1,889,831
3,376,418 1,089,806 5,366,224
3,195,631 2,269,986 5,465,617
14,172,574 8,765,488 22938 062"
$ 17368205, §11,035.474 § 98403679




EXpenses
{Salaries -
“Benefits:
.Payroll 1akes

‘Total salsries 2nd related
SRS

Occupancy costs
Supplits
Conlredt services
Information technology
Insurance
. Interest
Promotion and printing
Famir shore dies:
Telephone and postage
Conferences and iraining
‘Transpertation
Legal end audit
Merchandise sales
Dues.

Campaign expense

Total experisés before

depreciation and smortization

Dcprcciation and amortization

Totalcxpenses

iSee notes o Tinancial statements.
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"THE GRANITE YMCA:

STATEMENT OF FUNCTTONAL EXPENSES

For.theYéar Ended My 31, 2022
(with crapdrative totals for the Year, Endéd May 31, 2021).

!Social

_ Youth Healthy B ) Totel Program - “Total Support ) i
- . Devélopment Living . Responsibility- .Services Fundraising, Msanegement Services :2022 12021

S §i86300 3198508 '€ 495877 5 lo67maBs § 219526 s 613030 § 890456 SinSedial S 8,392,860
884,874 230,700 74,107. 1.189,681 31,257 79,290 110,547 1,300,228 97,702
741,143 176,316 ‘43,705... 961.164 . . . 22:615 47470 . . .. 70085 1,031,249 . 739,962
9312517 2,396,124 613,685 12,822,330 333,398 739,890 1073288 13,895,618 9,930,524
1,501,583 654,152 71,048 2,226,783 7,652 85,870 93,522 2,320,305 1,690,889
739,303 77589 160,137 977.029 25.007 37728 62,745 1,039,774 970,318
266,338 65,188 26,400 357,926 13,826 114471 128,297 486,223 283,985
106,680 39,952 11,852 158,484 5,456 83,560 89,016 247,500 228,167
174,110 47295 13,536 234.541 27 1472 3,699 238,640 184,019
128,157 49,426 42 177,625 19 294 313 177,938 £64,026
168,812 109,441 166 278,419 22,894 - 24,065 302,484 149,594
196,449 27,141 8,229 _ 1AW 966 142 1,108 232927 131,387
119,519 30,829 2,295 152,643 6,344 6,979 13,323 165,966 109,466
F12.635 33,941 4,969 151,545 C o 7.034 14,696 21,730 173,275 68,669
98,430 169 1,501 100,100 4 =, - 100,100 34,687
40,828 13,383 4536 58,747 C 31,982 31,982 90,729 31,026
71,529 6,026 oo 77.555 . - E 71,555 21,188
14,035 1,928 328 15,291 3,254 2314 5,568 21,859 14,217
2,890 1243 : 4,133 5,541 - $,541 9,674 569
13,553,815 3,553,827 - 918,728 18.026,370° ‘431,628 1,122,569 1,554,197 19,580,567 14,012,831
837,140 397,392 33,498 1,318,030 3 19,347 19,347 1,331,377 1,091 487
_'$ 14,440,955 $ 3,951,219 § 952226, - 5 19344400 § 431628 .5, 1,141916° § 1,573,544 S20917944  § 15,104,318,

uBignaog

AU

at

Nt b

0£04Z150130BZL Y906 503026V A
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"THE GRANITE YMCA

.STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For thie Years Ended May 31, 2022.and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Changes in net assets
Adjustmenls to reconcile increase’in net assels
to net cash provxdcd by operating activities
Depreciation: and amortization
th realized and unreahzed loss (gam) on investments
Unrealized {gain) on inlcrcst rate swap ¢ contract
Net realized and unrcahzcd (gain) on, bcneﬁclal interest
Contrlbuttons resmcted fnr endowment
Conmbutwns reslncled for capital ¢ as.t;els
 Grants rcstrlcted for capital assets-
Change in operating assets and habﬂmcs
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets -
Pledges recelvable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue :

‘Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Work in progress
. Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of cash surrender value of life insurance policy

Net cash used in investing ectivities

Cash flows from financing acnwues
Cash contributions restricted: for cndowment
Cash contributions resiricted for capital assets
Cash grants restricted for capnal assets
Borrowing on grant obligations
Forgiveness of grant obligations
Borrowing on loans

. Principal payments of loans

Principal payments of bond payable

‘Net cash (used ‘in) provided by financing activities
Increase in cash and-cash equivalents
Cashand cash'equivalents, beginning of year.

Cash and cash equivalents, end:of year

‘See notes to finasicial statémeénts.,

2022 202]

S 4,370,524 § 5,465,617
1,337,377 1,091,487 -
1,077,503 (2,915,483)
(106,747) (76,149)

 (455,696) (301,257)

(92,56%) (28,585)
(404,644) (284,159)
(150,039) -
1,642,540 (1,940,724)

(83,269) 4,979

(60,454) (38,217)

69,396 274,255
566,033 472,462
7,709,955 1,724,226
(3,871,729) (2,936,193)
3,483,609 © 3,036,838
(248,026) . =
(3,714,284) (1321,961)

(22,170) '
(4,372,600) (1,221,316

92,569 28,585
404,644 284,159
150,039 3
650,230 g

(42,100) 3
782,691 - 3,045,000 .
(2,455,288) (2315,023).
(165,000) (160,000)
(652,215) §82,721:
2,685,140 1,385,631
5,142,234 3,756,603

§ 7,827374 S 5,142,234
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THE GRANITE YMCA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (concluded)

" For the Years Ended May 31,:2022 and 2021

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Interest paid in cash * 8 171,93 $ 164,026

.Schedule of noncash 'investin_g,and ﬁnanciﬁg‘actiVities
ngr_ value of dona’téd assets _ $ 98,946 3 51,134
:Debt to finance pci;_uisition"of asisels" | $ - $ 900,000
Debt assumed upon acquisition 8 :,‘2,'05'1,9"47 $ - .
‘Assels assumed upon acquisition § 5247659 3§ -
Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Program loan $ 2,145,600 $ . -

See notes to financial statenients.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note'l. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Description of organization

The Grenite'YMCA (the “YMCA™) creates a community where all are wélcomie, and
builds & healthy spirit, mind and body based on'the values of caring, honesty, respect
and responsibility. This includes advancing our cause of strengthening community
through youth development, healthy living and social responsibility. The YMCA is
.a powerfu] association of men, women and children 'commj.&g‘d to lbri{i'ging.'é'gbut
lasting pérsonal and social change, With:a focus on nurturing the potential of every
child and- teen, improving the nation's health and wgll-bqing: ‘and “providing
opportunities to givé back and support neighbors, the YMCA enables youth, adults,
families and communities to be healthy, confident, connected and secure: '

‘Branches of The Granite YMCA include the YMCA of Downtown ‘Manchester,
Concord Family YMCA, YMCA Allard Center in Goffstown, YMCA of Strafford
County in Rochester, YMCA ‘of Greater Londonderry, YMCA of the: Seacoast.in
‘Portsmouth and YMCA Camping Services, which include Camp Foss and Camp Mi-
Te-Na. ' '

'‘Program activities

* Youth Development: “The YMCA is cominitted to nurturing fhe.“potenﬁai of
every child and teen. We believe-that all kids deserve the opportunity to
discover who they are aid what they can achieve. That is why we help young

~ people cultivate ‘the values, skills and relationships ‘that -lead to positive
behaviors, bettér health and educational ‘achievement. The YMCA programs,
such as resident camps Mi-Te-Na and Foss and our wide variety of day camps,
offer a range of ‘experiences that -enrich cognitive, social, physical and
emotional growth. (Examples of youth development programs: child care,
resident camps, traditional and specialty day camp programs, .gymnastics,
swimming, teen ¢enter and other youth programming.) ‘

o Healthy Living: The YMCA is a leading voice on health and well-being. We
bring families closer together, encourage good health and foster connections
‘through fitness, sports, fun and sharéd interésts. As a result, people in" our
community are receiving the support, ‘guidance and resources ‘they nieed 'to
achieve greater health in spirit, mind and body. This is’;particularlyfimportant»
‘as our nation struggles with an obesity crisis, families struggle with work/life
balénce and individualg search for personal fulfillment. (Examples of healthy
living programs: group weliness classes for_ryquth'_énq’gdul_ts; programs for
cdricer ‘survivors, -diabetes -prevention, youth. obesity’ ‘programs, health
.screening, yoga and, other recreational activities and social groups.)
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‘THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES.TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS (concluded)

'Social Responsibility: The YMCA believes in giving back énd supporting our
‘heighbors. We have been listening and responding to our community's most
scritical social needs: Programs such as the Support, Training and Adventure for
"Youth program (STAY), START, STRIVE and Power Scholars programs ate
designated to serve youth that may be “at risk”™ for a variety-‘of reasons. The
iSTAY piogram works with middle school age youth within the school and

sprovides: support, tutoring and adventure for youth. The: START program is
. located within two Manchester inner city school districts and providés a place -

for school age children to go after school, at reduced:rates, to participate in
structured academic activities and for daily, nutritious snacks. STRIVE serves
Lthose middle school/high school students that have been suspended.or expelled
from school; they come to the YMCA during the time they are not allowed in
iSchool, Here they receive tutoring and life skills education. The Power Scholars
.Academy is a six-week summer learning loss prevention program provided-to
‘Mancliester middle school students who are seeking enrichment and academic
.support to'improve their school performance. These are examples-of how:we (
ideliver training, resources and support that empower our communities to affect
«change, bridge gaps and overcome obstacles. We engage YMCA members,
participants and volunteers in activities that strengthen our ¢ommiunity and
pave the way for future generations to thrive.

As part.of our mission, Gur programs are accessible, affordable and open toall faiths,
backgrounds, abilities and income levels. We provide financial assistance to people
who otherwisé iy not have been able to afford to participate.

St_:‘p’jq‘dt-finghs;ériii'cés consist of the followiné;

P
*

'Fundraising — includes costs associated with the annual Reach Out for, Youth
and Families fundraising campaigns, capital ,campaign, ‘grant writing &nd
:special ‘events which provide funding for YMCA financial’ assistance_ for
.memiberships, summer camp, child care and a host of other enriching-activities,

‘Management' - provides necessary support services Such ‘ds institutional

‘leddership, budget and accounting control, personnel administration, facility.
_planning; establishment’ of institutional policies, board liaisof, ififormation
‘tecinclogy coordination, public information services, .and . membership
_services,
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES-TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accountmg

The financial statements of the YMCA have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and.in’ accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Ameru:a

Basis' -of presentation

The YMCA records resources for accounting and reportmg purposes based on the
existence or absence of. donor-lmposcd restrictions. Accordmgly, net assets and
changes thérein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without dondr restrictions — ‘Net assets available for use in'generdl
operatlons and not subject to donor-(or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing.
board has designated net assets for an ‘operating reserve and board-designated
endowment from net assets.without donor restrictions.

Nét assets with donor réstrictions — Net assets subject to donor-xmposcd restrictions.
Some donor-lmposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as-those that will be’

“met by theé passage of tithe or othet-events specified by the donor." Other donor-
imposed -restrictions are *perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulatés those
resourées be maintained i perpetuity. -

Gifts 6f long-lived assets and gifts of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived
assets are recognized ‘as revenué When the assets are placed in- service. Donor-

~ imposed ‘restrictions are released “when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapseéd, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been' fulﬁlled or both.

Operating.activitics

Operating activities reflect all transactions increasing or decreasing net assets except
those iteni§ assotiated 'with long-term irivestment, such as contnbutlons for
endowrnent and facnlmcs and equipment, investment returns in excess of anigunts -
designated” for cuifent operations and changes in the fair value of the interegt rate
swap.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

'NOTES'TO'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note'2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with aocountmg principles
generally accepted in thé United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that aﬁ'cct the' reported amounts of assets and liabilities
dnd disclosures of coritingeint matters at the date of the financial statements and the.
reported amounts ‘of revenue and -expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ froi those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The YMCA has mﬁltipie. revenue streams that are accounted for as reciprocal
exchange transactions, includinig memibership and program fees, residence program
and related services, and government contract revenues.

Because the YMCAs performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration less
than one year, the YMCA has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in_
FASB. ASC 606-10-50- 14(a) Revenue from Contracls with ‘Customers, and
therefore, is not required to diselose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obhgatlons that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at
the end of the réporting period. There are no ‘incremental costs of obtaining a contract
and no significant financing components,

Membership dues and program feés; Membership dues and program’ fees consist of
amounts that familiesand individuals pay to participate in health, fitmess, education
and recreation activities and programs Members generally pay a onetime joining fee
‘plus monthly. dues in advance, Membershrps provide use of the recreation facilities,
access to free classes, progranis and activities, diid discounts to fee-based programs.
The.YMCA offers a_variety of programs including farmiily, child care, day camp,
" resident camp, ‘teen, scholdsti¢; fitness, aquatics, héalth immigration, -and
international services. Fcc—based programs are available to the public. Program fees
for short duration programs of two monthis or less, such ‘as aquatics classes, ere
typically paid in advance at the time of reglstranon ‘Program fees for longer duration
programs, such as fee-based: childcare, iare usually paid. monthly in-advance.
Cancellation provisions vary by program, but most transactions are cancellable with
15 t0.30 days™:notice. Refunds may be available for services not provideéd. Firancial
assistance is “availablé: to members and ‘program’ participants. Such - financiai
assistance isreflected as a rcducnon of gross membership ¢ dues and program fees.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Membership dues and program fees are recognized ratably ‘ovef the period the
membership or program service is provided on a straight-line basis in an amount that

. reflects the consideration the YMCA expects to be éntitled to in exchange for those

services. All the YMCA’s révenue from contracts with customers are from
performance obligations satisfied over time. Prices are specific to a distinct
performance obligation and do not consist of multiple transactions, Mémibership
‘joining fees are ratably recognized over a one-year period from the membership start
date.

Membership dues and program fees paid to the YMCA in advance represent contract -
liabilities and are recorded as other deferred revenue. Amounts bilted but unpaid are
contract assets and recorded as account receivables.

_Contributions and pledges

The YMCA records unconditional promises to give. (pledges) as receivables and
contributions within the appropriate net asset category based on'the existence or
absence of donor conditional promises to give. A conditional promise to give is a
contribution with a measurable perforance or other barrier and a right to return.
The YMCA recognizes conditional promises to ‘give ‘when the measurable
performance or barrier, imposed by the donor are substantially ‘met or explicitly
‘waived by the donor. B B

.Contributed materials and services

Contributions of donated materials and services are récorded at their fair valuein the
period received. For the yeafs ended May 31, 2022-and 2021, the"YMCA received
donated materials. of $98,946 -and $51,134, respéctively, feldting ‘to equipment,
supplies, furniture, and fixtures. ' ;

The YMCA recognizes contributions of services received if such ‘services: (a) create
or enhance nonfinancial assets, (b) require specialized skills, (c} are provided by

“individuals possessing. those skills, and (d) would typically iiced 6 bé purchased if-
‘not contributéd. For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the YMCA received

contributed services of $49,153 and $8,500, respectively:

"The YMCA receives services from a large number of volunteers who give significant

#mounts of their time'to the programs of the YMCA. No amounts hdve béenreflected

‘for these typés of donated servites, as thére is no objective basis available to measure
‘the value of such services.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Functional altocation of expenses

Expcnscs are charged directly to program, management or fundralsmg in’ general
categories based on specific identification. Indirect expenses have been: .allocated

* based on full-time equivalent expenses and facility square footage usage.

Adverfising costs

The' YMCA expenses advertising costs as incuirred. For the years ended May .31,
2022 ‘and 2021, advertising: costs were approx1mate]y $289,961 aiid -$141,598,
respectively.

Incomc taxes

TThe YMCA has récéived 4 favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue,
Service stating that it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC), as an organization described:in Section
501(0)(3) ‘except for income taxeés pertaining to-unrelated business i incoime.

Thé TFinancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance reqmres tax effects
from uncertain‘tdx positions to be recognized in the financial statemeits only'if the
position is more llkely than not to be sustained if the position-were to be. challcngcd
by a tamng authority. Managcmcnt 'has determined that there ‘are ifid mitefial
uinceértain positions that require recognition in the financial statcmcnts Additionally,
no provision for income taxes is reflected in these financial statemerits: Interest'and

_penalties would be recognized.as a tax expense; however, there is no ‘interest .or

penalties recognized in the statements of activities. The tax years after'2019 are still
open to audit for both federal and state purposes. :

Cash aiid cash equiva!ents
the YMCA's investment strategy is reported as investments:

Cash ‘cash equivalents and restricted cash reported in the stateinents, of éash flows

2022 2021
" Cash and cash equivaleiuts ) $ 7,781,472 $.5,098,834.
Restricted cash 45,902 43.400

Total 87,827,374 A2142.238
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)
Concentration of credit risk

The YMCA maintains cash balances at cerlain financial institutions in excéss of 1he
| insuranicé limits prowded by the Federal Dcposnt Insurance Corporation. The YMCA'
"has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The YMCA monitors. the financial
‘stability of financial institutions regularly and management does not believe there is
Significant credit risk associated with deposits in excess of federally msurcd amounts.

. AtMay 31, 2022, the YMCA s uninsured cash balance totaled $7,459,319,

‘Derivative financial instrument

Derivative financial mstruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities at thelr
‘fair véliie ofi the statenient of financial position, with the changes in the fair value
reported in other.changes in net assets’ without donor restrictions. The derivative:
financial instrument is classified on the statement of financial position as interest rate
swap agrecment,

Accounts receivable

.Accourits receivable are carried at original invoice amount. Management determines, -
‘the collcctablllty by -regularly cvaluatmg individual receivables. Receivables are:
written off when deemed uncollectibie. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously
‘written off:dre retorded as revenue when received. Management believes that all
outstandmg receivables’ are collectible; therefore, no ailowance for Aincollectible’
_receivables has bEii- provnded ‘The YMCA does not accrue interest on ‘unpaid
accounts recgivable. For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020
‘accoiints Feceivable Was $394,944, $2,037,484, and 96,760 respectively.

:Ir'wcstménts

Investments are rcportcd at fair value and are based primarily on Guioted market
prices or estlmated fair value.

Property, pla’n‘t and equipment

Inivéstriént in property, plant and eqmpment is stated at cost, less accuiiulated
-‘deprcclation or at fair value if donatéd. Major additions and 1mprovements in excess -
of 35,000 aic capltahzcd ‘while ‘ordinary maintenance and repaits arc-charged 10
EXpense as mcurled The'cost-and accumulated dcprcc:auon of assets sold or retired
are removed from the accounts, and any gains or losses are reflected i in the statément.

of activiti€s:
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THE GRANITE YMCA

‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

Assets are deprccnatcd usmg the stralght -line method over the following estlmated
useful lives:

Building and renovations : 20 — 40 years
Building and leasehold improvements 7~ 10 years
Futniture, fixhires dnd equipment 5~7 years
Vehicles : 3 - 10 years

Deferred revenue

~ Membership dues and program:fees that are demgnatcd for or felated to future years'
activities are deferred and recognized as revenue in the period in which they apply.
For the fiscal years ended ‘May 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 deferfed revenue was
$3,365,720, $2 799,687, and $2,327,225 respectively.

Subscquent events

Management has evaluated subsequent everits and updated the change from LIBOR
to BSBY rate ini Note' 10 along with the disclosure in Note 19 of the move of the
YMCA office in-August, 2022. Thig evaluation is through October 20,2022, the date
which the financial statements were available to be 1ssued and has not evaluated
subsequent eveiits after that date.

Accounting pronounéémentadopted:

In May 2014, the Tidaiicial Accounlmg Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting -
Standards Updatc (ASU) 201409, Revenire from Contiacts with Customers Topic
(606) This ASU supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 603,
Revenue Recognition, and most induistry-specific guidance. The core principle of the
guidance is that an enmy should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods orseryices to customners in an‘amoiunt that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to'be cntltlcd in exchange for those goods or services, The YMCA -
adopted this ASU on Jung 1, 2020

The 'YMCA 1mplemented ASU 2014-09 :using a full refrospective method .of
application. The adoption of ASU 2014-09 tesulted in changes 1o the disclosure of
revenue. There were no; matenal changcs to the recognition or presentation -0f
revenue as a résult of the application of ASU.2014-09. As a result no_cumulative
effect adjustmcnt was recorded upon adoption.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES.TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Recent accounting pronouncement

In February 2016, the FASB issued (ASU) 2016-02, Léases. This ASU affects any -
entity that enters into a Jlease; with some spcclﬁed scope exemptions. The main
difference between previous GAAP.and this ASU is the recognition of lease assets
and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under
previous GAAP. The amendments: in this’ ASU dre effective for fiscal years
. begmnmg after December 15, 2021, The YMCA has not yet Jmplcmcntcd this ASU
" dand is in the process of assessing ‘the effect on theit financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued (ASU). 2020 07, Contributed Nonfinancial
Assets. This ASU affects not-for-profit entities that recéive contributed nonfinancial
assets. The amendment addresses presentatlon and disclosure of contributed
nonfinancial asséts. The amendmeiits in this ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15,2021,

Note 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for genéral expendtture ‘that is, without donor or other
restrictions lumtmg their.use within one year of the balance sheet date comprise the

following:
2022 - 2021
‘Financial assets: .
'Cash and cash equivalents '$ 7,781,472  $ 5,098,834
Restricted cash 45, 902 43,400
‘Accounts receivable '394,944 2,037,484
Pledges receivable 360,705 300,251
Investments 14,732,557 15,421,940
Cash surrender value of life insurance ' 2}_2,170 -
Beneficial interest in.remainder trusts 2,322.308 1,866,612
Total financial assets 25,660,058 24,768,521
Less fi nancxal assets held to meet donor-lmposed
a  restrictions: .

' Restricted cash 11(45,902) (43,400)
Pledges recéivable (247,094) (251,811)
Donor-rcstnctcd endowment funds. (8,039,984)  (8,537,595)

Less_ﬁnancial assets not available \}vit'h_i_n_ohe year:
Cash surreridervalueé of life insurance (22,170)

Beneficial interest in remainder {fust

(2,322,308)

(1,866,612)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N

Note’3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY (concluded) -

Less board-designated endowment fund {6.692.573) (6:884,345)

Amount available for general expenditures within

one year §8200007 S 7184758

The YMCA'’s endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowmerits and funds
designated by the Board &3 ehdowriients. Income from donor-restricted endowments
is restricted for specific purposes, with the exception of the amounts available for
general use. Donor-restricted- endowment funds are not available. for .general
expenditure. ’ : ‘ |

The 'YMCA’s board-designated endowment of $6,692,573 is subject to an dnnual
spending rate as described in Note 15. Although management does not intend to
spend-from this board-designated eidowment (other than amounts appropriated for
general -expenditure as part of the Board’s -annual budget apptoval and
-appiopriation), these amounts could bé made available if necessary.

As part of thieir liquidity maniagement plan, the YMCA maintains a revolving line of
credit of $750,000 to cover short term cash needs (Note 11). Qccasionally, the Board
‘'désignates a portion of any .operating.surplus to its operating reserve.

‘Not¢ 4. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Pledges receivable represent'amounts due from donors for hulﬁ-yéér,%uhcﬁhd'i[iEmal
‘plédges. Pledges receivable ‘are shown net of a .discount on future collections.
Payments.on the pledges are expected to be recéived as follows:

_ _ _ 2022 2021
Proimises to give expected to be collected in S
Less than one yéar - $ 120,481 $ 156,654
One'to five years 273,272 178,418
Total pledges recéivable 303753 335072
Less discount to present value 7 (13,360) (1 7,868)
Less allowance for unicollectible pledges /(19,688) A ._(16?953L
Nét pledges receivable 360,705 300,251
Less current portion (100,793) _(_-139,-701') '

Long term pledges recéivable, net $259912 $160,550
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i
Noté 5. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Thié FASB defities fair valué as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in'the YMCA's principal or most advantageous:

“rhatket ifi an orderly. transaction between market participants on the measurement
date..

The .standard, &stabhshes -a fair value hnerarchy which requirés the: YMCA t6
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable. inputs
‘when méasuring fair value. The standard describes threg levels of inputs that may be-
used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identica) assets or liabilities
i active. markets that the YMCA has the ablllty to access as of the
measurement date..

Level 2: Si gmﬁcant other obscrvable inputs other thian Level 1 prlccs
such ag'‘quoted pricés for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable of can
be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3; Slgmﬁcant unobservable inputs that reflect the YMCA's own
assumpnons about the assumptions that market participants-would
use in pricing an asset or liability.

In many cases, a'valuation technique used to measure fair value includés inputs from
multiplé :levels of the fair value hierarchy. The Towest level of sngmﬁcant mput
defermines the p!acement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.  ‘

Invesmonis measured at fair.value at May 31, 2022 are summarized.below: -

Fair-
Value (Level 1) (Level2)  {Level 3)
Valued on a. recurrlng " basis, -
Assets
Investments !
Money marketfunds $ 1,097,541 3 1,097,541 3 .- 8 -
U:S. trédgury oblngatnons © 1,183,335 1,183, 335 - -
Fixed income, 2,907,208 . - 12,907,208 -
-Equity. 9,544,473 9,544,473 - o B
\Beneficial interest in-trusts 2322308 - - 12,322,308

Total assels $17.054865 $11.825340  £2907.208 ' §2322308



‘DocuSign Envelope ID: A419CCE2-DFD5:49C6.A728:DC310572FC3C
-20-
‘THE GRANITE YMCA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. INVESTMENTS.AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

A

‘Liabilities
Interest rate swap in'loss position.  § 92,192 $ . - $ 9219 § -
Total liabilities $ 9219 & - $.9021%2 £ -
Valied on a non-recurring-basis _ i v
Pledges receivable $._360.705 b - & - $.360,705
Tnvestments measured at fair value at May 31, 2021 are summarized below:
Fai 1 |
Valued on arecurring basis ‘ '
Assets
JAnvestments ‘ ‘
Money market funds $ 129961 § 129,961 $ - 3 -
U.S. treasury-obligations, 1,786,128 1,786,128 & ;
Fixed income 2,118,243 . - 2,118,243 . -
Equity 11,387,608 11,387,608 : :
Beneficial interest in trusts . 1,866.\61_2 - - . 1866612
Total assefs £17.288.552  $£13303.607 §2.118243 21866612
Liabilities
Interest rate swap in loss ! : -
‘position $ 198,939 3 - $ 198939 % -
“Total tiabilities $ 198039 § .- S 198939 § -
Valued on a non-recurring
basis . ' .
jPledges recéivable f&, 300,251 S - 3300231

Fair values for invéstrients are detemlmed by reference to quoted market pnces and
other rélevant information: generated by market transactions. The fau' value of
‘pledges feceivable is est:mated at thé present value of expected future cash flows.
The discount rate used was 5% and 4%-for 2022 and 2021, respectively. The fair
value -of Levél 2 invéstitients- has been'measured using quotcd market prices of
similar assefs and the’fair value market approach, as détermined by sevéral factors,
‘including its’ credit ratmg rélative to & corporate bond with similar maturity “duration,
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘Note.S. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (concluded)

The fair market value of the bcncﬁcml intercst in trusts 18 based upon the ‘present
value of the estimated future cash- receipts: from the trust’s assets, considering a rate
of return on the agsets in the trust, less management’s’allowance for possible future
principal reductions. :

The YMCA uses a lending -institution’s propnetary models, which consider past,
present and future assumptions regardmg market conditions to estimate the faxr value
of the liability for the interest rate swap agreement. Afinuities _payable are primarily
valued using valuatioh models that consider assumptions about future market
conditions and actuarially determined payout periods.

Investment return at May 31 is summarized as follows!

Interest and dividends, net of fees $ 221,764 $ 185,188
Net realized gain 505,635 * 155,166
Net unrealized (loss) gain (1,583,138) 2,760,316

Investment return, net of expenses (855,739). 3,100,670
Investment ekpenses 69,737 65,607

Total (loss) return on investments

_$ (786,002)

$ 3,166,277
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equiprhent' were comprised of the following at May 31:

2022 2021

‘Building and improvements $26,490,861  $24,513,389

‘Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6,537,566 5,047,405

"Land 2,004,115 1,763,114

| | 35,032,542 31,323,908

‘Less accumulated depreciation 19,030,596  _ 17,710,746
Net investment in property, plant and <

equipment - $16,001,946  $'13,613,162

‘Note 7. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUSTS

The YMCA is an irtevocable beneficiary of two charitable remainder trusts held by
'a bank as trustee. These resources are neither in the possession of, nor under the
‘control of the YMCA... The terms of one trust provide.for income_of the trust to be

distributed to the current beneficiary. The second trust provides for income and
principal to be_distributed to the ‘¢urrent beneficiary based on an incremental rate
-each year. Upon the benéficiaries’ deaths, two trusts réquire the remaining principal

be distributed to charitable beneficiaries. Since the trustee is allowed to make

‘principal distributions to'the ciirrent beneficiaries, management has established an
-allowance to provide for this possibility. The fair value of the benéficial interest was
determined by applying the YMCA's percentage interest to the fair value of trust
-assets as reported by the trustee and discounting this value by 20%. .

2022 2021
- Beneficial interest in trusts $2,154,935  $2,238,422
. -Allowance for principal distribution (430,987) . (447 684)

“Total $ 1,723,948 $ 1,790,738
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Noté 7. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUSTS (concluded)

The ' YMCA of the Seacoast is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund st the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the “Foundation™). Pursuant to the terms of
" the resolution establishing this fund, property contributed to the Foundation is held
as'a separate fund designated for the benefit of the YMCA. of the ‘Seacoast: In
accoidance with.its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the
* fuiid to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The distributions are approximately 4. 0% of the
market value;of the fund per year. The estimated value of future distributions from
the fund is included in these financial statements as required by generally accepted
accounting principles; however, all property in the fund was contributéd to the
Foundatlon 1o be held and administered for the benefit of the YMCA of the Seacoast.
On May 31, 2022 “the marketf value of the fund’s assets was approximately $85,067.

The Concord Fan'uly YMCA is the beneficiary of several irrevocable, perpetual trusts
'nmianaged by local, mdependent financial institutions. The Concord Family YMCA.
received distributions from two trusts based on the income earned and 'annual
distributionis ‘made by the trust. The Concord Family YMCA also receives
distributions from a separate trust with a set annual distribution amount of $200. The.
Concord Famxly YMCA’s portion of the fair value of these trusts, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, amounted
. to $513, 293 at May. 31 2022,

“The Concord Famxly YMCA also receives discretionary distributions each year from

ariother trust. However, due'to the fact that the trustee of this trust has the ability to.
.change beneﬁclancs, this trust is not mcluded in the statement of ﬁnancml posmon
‘asa beneﬁcxal interest in trust. -

‘Note 8. FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS

The YMCA of the Seacoast is also a beneﬁclary of two designated funds at the

'Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property’

contributed to the Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the benefit of

the 'YMCA of thie Seacgast. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation

-makes distributions from'the funds to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The distributions:
-are approxlmatcly '4,0% of the market value of the funds per year. The funds are not

.inclnded in'these financial statements, since all property in the funds was contributed

to the Foundation 16 be held-and ‘administered for the' benefit of the YMCA of the
Seacoast. For the year.ended May 31, 2022, $3,892 was received from the- funds: On
- May 31,2022, the'market value of the funds .assets was approxlmately $107,226.

7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS (concluded)

The Concord Family YMCA i isa beneficiary of a dc51gnated fund at the Foundat:on
Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund, property contributed to-

" the Foundation is héld as a separate fund designated. for the benefit of the Concord
Family YMCA. In.accordance, with its spending policy, the Foundation makes
‘distributions from the fund to the Concord Family YMCA. “The distributions are °
-dpproximately 4.2% of a trailing twenty quarter average of the fair market value of
the fund each year. The fund is not included in these financial statements since all
propérty in thé fund was coittibuted to the Foundation to be held and administered
for the benefit of the Concord Famlly YMCA. For the year ended May 31, 2022,
$1,206 was received from the funds. On May 31, 2022, the market value of the funds”
asscts was approximately-$33,226.

Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT

“Bond and notes payable wer€ as follows as of May 31:

[
e
™
IS
[
=)
| %}
it

Bond payable to Citizens Bank, N.A. in the original
amount of $3,800,000, in monthly sinking fund
iristallments, plus interest of 2.05% per annum through
October 2028, net of Unamortized deferred financing
costs of $60,357 and.$72,234 at May 31, 2022 and
2021, rcspcctwely The bond is securéd by certain - -
YMCA buildings. Reference is made to Note 10. $1,214,643. $ 1,367,766

'Non-iriiercst}bearihg ,nofc ‘payable tp tie City of
Manchester in annual-installments of $13,000 due in
August each year, through October 2024. The rote is
- secured by:real estate located:in Manchester NH. 39,000 52,000

Note payable to th'eTS‘tranora Economic Development -

Corporation (SEDC) dated August 16, 2012 .in the

ofigihal ‘amount of $475,000. Monthly principal and

interest payments in the &motint of $2,634 are required

through August, 2027 The. interest rate is 3% per

arinum. Theé note is sccured by substantially all of the o N
assets located in Rochester, NH. . 278,635 - 301;515

Note payable to New Hampshlre Health and Education’

Facilities Authonly dated July 5, 2018 in the original

amount of$88,256. Monthly prmclpa] and ‘interest

paymentsin the amount of $1, 509 are required through

Septembet 2022. The interest; rate'is 1% per annum. B _
The note is secured by property. CL T 1,537 25,427
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Notc payable to New Hampshire Health and Education

Facilities Authority dated March 5, 2019 in the original

amount of $83,106. Monthly principal and interest -

payments in the amount of $1,421 are required through

June 2024. The interést rate is 1% per annum. The note i
is secured by property. 35,147 51,715

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated June 1, 2019 in_
the original amount of §1,720,000. Monthly principal
and interest payments:in the amount of -$12,170 are
required through May 2024 with the rcmammg balance
due June 2029. The interest rate is 3.35% pér annum.

The note is secured by substannally all of the assets in i
.Manchcster NH. 1,‘449,93'1 1,545,229

Note payable to Citizenis Bank ddted June 1, 2019
converted from drawn-down line of credit in the
original amounit of $900,000. Monthly printipal and
interest payments in the amount of $6,359 are required
through May 2029 with the remaining balatice due June
2029. The interest rate is 2.51% per annum. The note
is secured by the secorid mortgage for’ property located o o
in Manchester, NH. ' ' 818,654 873,366

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated March 16,2021

‘in the original amount of $2,145,600 under_ the -

Paycheck Protection Program. Undei the térms of the

loan, it may be forgiven as long as the borrower uses

the proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,

benefits, rent and utilities. On October 21, 2021, the

eritire loan was forgiven in full. - . 2,145,600

Mortgdge note payable-to TD' Bank 'in the original

amount of $850,000. Monthly . prmclpal and interest

payrients in the amount of.$3,787 are required through

‘Septemiber 2027, ‘The intérest rate is 4,84% per annum. _

The note is secured by Concord real cstate. 435,162 -



DocuSign Envelope 10: A4 19CCE2-DFDS-48CE-A728-DC310572FC3C
-26-
THE GRANITE YMCA -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (conlmued)

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education

Facilities Authority in the original amount of $37,716.

Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount

of $645 are required through February 2023. The

interest rate is 1% per annum. The note is secured by : o

‘property. . 5,779 -

Note payable to New Hampshire Business Fmance

Authority in the original amount of $375,000. Monthly

principal and ‘interest' payments in the amount of

$5,895 are required through January 2023. The interest ;

rate is 1% per'annum. The note is secured by property. 46,985 -

Note payable to New Hamipshire Health and Education

Facilities Authority in the original amount of $59,500.

Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount

of $1,017 are required through June 2027. The interest

rate is 1% per annum. The note is secured by property. 59,500 -

Non-interest beating note payable to Liberty Energy in
the original amotint of $50,000. Morithly payments in '
the amount of $595 are required through August 2024. 20,238 -

Note payable to Ncw Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority.in the original amount of $110,000.

Monthly principal and interest payments in'the amount
of $1,880 are rcqum:d through August 2024. The
interest rate is 1% per arinum. The note is secured by’

. property. 55,687 ' -
Total long-term debt and unamortized deferred o : ,
financing costs _ 4,466,898 6,362,618
Léss current portion lohg-ter’m debt ;_(437;388) (2,531,763)

N
Long-term debt net of current portion and unaingitized 7
deferred ﬁnancmg costs ‘ -$-4,029,410' .5 3,830,855
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LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Futuré-anniial maturities of the notes are as follows:-

“Year endmg
May 31, Amount
2023 $ 497845
2024 461,799
2025 455,246
2026 437,778
2027 - 455,468
_‘ Thereafier 2,219,119
Unamortized deferred
financing costs ' (60,357)
Total $ 4,466,898

‘The ‘loan ‘agreement contains certain - financial . and nonfinancial covenants.

' Managcmcnt has an ongomg analysis of covenant compliance. At May 31,2022;'the
“YMCA was'in comphance with the financial covenants.

SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS

Durmg 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authorities (the -

_ “Authorlty”) sold $3,800,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Greater Manchester Family

'YMCA Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the YMCA to
financé certain.improvements to the YMCA's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were
issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the
‘Borids, the YMCA entered into.an.interest rate swap agreement with. Citizens’ Bank,
NA (lhe “Counterparty”) for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk:
.associated with the Series 2007 Bonds. The bonds mature in 2028 and can bé repaid
at any.,tlme.

‘Duiring 2009, & downgradmg of the credit rating of the bank-providing the letter-of-
‘credit occurred which resulted in a significanit increase of the weekly vanablc rate.

'Since it becamie evident that the credit markets would not soon retum to normaley,
.lhe YMCA elected to convert the Series 2007 JBonds from a. weekly Tate mode to a
‘bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase_ mode crealed a rate périod in which
‘the Seties.2007 Bonds bedr interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of-68:
percent of. the sum of the adjustcd period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 250 basis poinits..
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Note 10. SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS (concluded) -

Note 11.

Note 12.

The bank' purchasé mod¢ commienced on September 1, 2009 and expired on
November-30,. 2021, Tt was further amended on September 12, 2022 through
September of 2023 with interest per annum equal to the product of (a) .79 multiplier
by the sum of (b} the sum of BSBY rate plus 2.16%. This expiration date niay be

extended by the bank and the YMCA has the option to convert back to the weekly
rate mode:

The Series 2007 Bond documents require the YMCA to comply with certain financial
covenants. As of May 31,2022, the YMCA was in compliance with these covenants.

REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

The YMCA has a revolving line of credit with Citizens Bank for-$750,000. The line
of credit is used for. operating cash flow purposes if needed. Any amounts drawn on
the line of credit are. payable on demand with interest equal to onc month LIBOR
rate, plus a 2.25% interest margin'under the LIBOR Advantage program. The interest
rate at May 31, 2022 was'3.16%. On Septemiber 21, 2022, the interest was amended
at a rate per annum cqual to'the BSBY rate for thc interest period in effect for the
loan plus 2.25%: The line-is seciired by substantially all of the YMCA's non'real
estate assets. At May 31, 2022-and 2021, there was o outstanding balance Gwed on

‘the lirie of crcdlt

The lme of crcdlt agreement contains certain ﬁnanmal and nonﬁnanmal covcnants

YMCA was in comghance ‘with the financial covcnanls
INTEREST RATE SWAP

During 2007, the YMCA eniered into an interest rate swap agreemient (the “ swap
agreement’’) With Citizeiis Bank NA. (the “Counterparty") to hedge the interest rate
on the Series 2007 Bonds. Pursuant to the swap agreement, the initial notional
amaunt and amortization will match the par amount and amortization of the Series

2007 Bonds. Uridér the tefms of the swap agreement, the YMCA will pay the fixed
rate:of 3.75%on the notional amount-and in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the

YMCA a Variable'rate on the notional amount based on the 67 percent of one- -month

- "LIBOR: The cost of the interesf rate swap for the years ended May 31,2022 dnd 2021

was addéd to interést expénse in the'statement of functional expenses.

Any gam of loss ifi'the ‘valueof the swap contract is recorded as an unrealized gain
or loss on the carrymg amoirnt value-of the interest rate’'swap contract. ‘For the years
ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the:-YMCA had unrealized income on the carrying
valug of the interest fate swap agrecment of $106,747 arid $76,149 respectwely
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT OBLIGATIONS

In September 2013, ‘the Concord :Family YMCA was awarded a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). According to the terms of the agreement, the
YMCA is a sub-recipient. of a Community Development Finance Authority
- Community Development Block Grant through the County of Merrimack, New
Hampshlre The grant, amounting to $364,000, was used to repair and replace
component§ of the HVAC system in the firehouse ‘building, which houses the
childcare center. This grant also reguires that at feast 51% of those individuals
benefiting from the fundéd renovations be members of low to moderate income
families. A portion of the.grant obligation is forgiven for each year the Concord
Family. YMCA compliesWwith such participant-benefit conditions (at the annual rate
of 5% for the twenty years endmg September 30, 2034). For the year ended May 31,
2022, grant obligations .forgiven amounted to $18,200. The outstanding grant
obligation of $223,708 must be repaid to the County of Merrimack if the participant-
benefit conditions are not miet.

In July 2017, the Concord Family YMCA was awarded another CDBG. According
to the terms of this agreement, the Concord Family YMCA is a sub-recipient of a
grant from the City of Concord, New Hampshire. The grant, amounting to $478, 000,

~was used to make improvements ‘to the firehouse building, which houses the
childcare center. This grant also requires that.at least 66% of those: mdmduals_
benefiting from the funded renovations be ‘members of low to moderate income
families. A portion of the grant obhganon is forgwen for each year the Concord
“Family YMCA conipliés with such, parhc:pant—beneﬁt conditions (at the annual rate
of 5% for the twenty years ending June 30, 2038). For the year ended May 31,2022,
grant obligations forgiven amounted to $23, 900. The outstanding grant obllgat:on of
$384,422 must be repaid to the City of Concord New Hampshire 1f the participant-
‘benefit conditions are not miet.

The balance of thése grarit obligations at May 31, 2022 amounted to $608,130 and
have been classified as short-term due to the subjecuve nature of the obligations.



DocuSign Envelope ID: A419CCE2- DFD549CE-AT2B.DC3D5T2FCIC

-30-
THE GRANITE YMCA
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Note 14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions coh_sis‘t'ed_of the following at May.31:

‘Net assets with donor restrictions; '
Restricted for
~Programs oL o
Youth developmént § 1342876 $: 149,028
Healthy living 153,134 22,840
Social responsibility ' 65,000 110,400
Fundraisers 233,464 206,225
Capital expenditure 622,269 272,268
Time
Beneficial interest in trusts 2,211,869 1,766,038
- Cumulative appreciation on _
permanently restricted investments 1,612,197 2,168,522
Endowments restricted in perpetuity 6,432,774 6,340,153
Total net assets with donor restrictions '$ 12,673,583 $11,035,474

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurfing expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose, by the occurrence of events specified by the donors, or by a
.change in the restrictions specified, by. thie -donor. Those amounts released from
restrictions during the year ended May, 31, 2022 are as follows: '

Programs
Youth-development :$ 1,035,861
Healthy living - - 24,477
Social fesponsibility ; 213,985
Fundraisers ' 77,401
Capital expenditure , 204,692
Time =
Cumulative appreciation on. |
permanently restricted investments 382432
Total net asséts Teleased from
donor r_cst.rictio_ns, ; .. 51,938,848
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION

"The YMCA’s endowment consists of both donor-restricted éndovwmeht fiinds and
funds demgnated 'by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments : for the
following purposes:

* Youth development
* Healthy living
* Social responsibility .

Net assets associated witli-endowment funds, including funds designatéd by the
‘Board of Trustees to fiinction as endowments, are classified dnd reported- based on
‘the existence or absence of. donor-imposed restrictions.

‘Purpose of the endowrnent

‘The endowment fund is intended to provide for the operation and spééia’]_ programs
:of thé YMCA. In doing so, the endowment fund provides a secure, long-term source

7 of funds to establish or mamtam programs that are consistent With the aim of the
YMCA.

Iihterpretation‘ of relevant law

The state of New Hampshire has passed a version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of Trustees of the
'YMCA has mterpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
origindl gift as of ‘the gift date of the donor-restricted endowmient funds, sbsent
‘explicit donor snpulatlons to the contrary. As a result of this intérpretdtion; ‘the
‘YMCA ‘retains in perpetuity (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift
amounts donated to-the endowment and (b) any accumulations'to the endowmént

_ ‘made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the
‘time the accumulation is added. . .

In accordance with UPMIFA, the YMCA considers the following factors i in' making
Y determmatlon to appropriate or accumilate donor—restrlcted endowment funds:.

1. The duration and prcservauon of the fund

2. 'The.purposes of the organization and the donor- rcstucled éndowment fund
3. :General economic conditions

4. ‘The possible effect 6f miflation and deflation

5. ‘The expected total return from income and the appreciation of invéstmests
6. ‘Other resources of the organization
7. The investment policies of the organization
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Noic 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)
Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of May 31, 2022:
Without

~ Donor With Bonor '
Restrictions Restrictions Total

-Donigt Festricted. $ - $8,039,984 § 8,039,984
Board designated 6.692,5 - 6,692,573
Total fuiids $6.692,573 $£8030984  §14732.557

Endowment net.asset composition by type of fund as of May 31, 2021:

Without
Donor With Donor

Restrictions  Restrictions Total

Donor restricted, $ - $8,537,595 8 8,537,595
Board designated 6.884.345 ' - . _ 6884345

. Totalfuids $63884345 $8.537.505 $£15.421.940
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)

Changes in endowinent rfiet assets for the years ended May 31,2022 and 2021:

‘Without. "
Donor With Donar
Restrictions ~ Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets as.of o _ ‘
May 31, 2020 $5,591,397 $7,015,705  $12,607,102
Investmeni return o 7 /
Investment income - 77,372 107,816 185,188
Net realized and unrealized ' S
gain . 1218093 _1697.389 _ 2915482
Total investment return 1,295,465 1,805,205 3,100,670
" Endowment coniributions - 28,585 28,585
Appropriation of endowment o _ £
assets for operations (2.517) (311,900). (314.417)
‘Eridowment ‘net. assets *as .of ,
May 31, 2021 $6.884345 38537505 £15.421.940
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" Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)

‘Without s
‘Donor With Donor
_ Restrictions ~ Restrictions Total
Investment return . = I ' _
Investment income $ 120,715 $ 93,689 - § 214404
Net realized and unrealized : i
‘gain : (474.531) (614,617) _ (1.089,148)
Total investment return - (353,816) (5:20,92'8)' © (874,744)
- Endowment contributions 10,137 E 10,238 | 20,375

Transfer upon acquisition of o N
Concord Family YMCA - - 395,511 395,511

Appropriation of endowment = _
assets for operations : - (227,225) (227,225)

Appropriation of endowment : oy
'~ assets for gift anrivities - (3,300) (3,300)

Apprqpriation of endowment )
not drawn 151,907 © __(151.907) -

Endowment net assets as of.

May 31,2022 $66902.573  $803008¢ £14732.557
Return objectives and risk parameters

The YMCA has adOptcd investment and spending pohcncs for endowment assets that’
attempt to provide a predictable stteam of funding to programs supported by its
‘endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment
assets. Endowment assets include those assefs ‘of - donor-restricted _funds that the
'YMCA must hold in perpcnuty or for a donor-specified period(s), s well ds board-
designated funds.
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‘Nite 15'. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (concluded)
Invéstment objéctive

Endowment funds are invested in a diversified portfolio, consisting primarily of fixed
income and equity mutual funds and other investments, which may réflect varying
rates of return. The intended -overall rate of return of the portfolio is a reasonable
"real” rate, consistent with the risk levels establishéd by the investrent committee.
The objective is that the minimum acceptable rate of return over a. full market cycle
of 3 to 5 years is one that equals or exceeds the assumed spcndmg rate plus the rate
of inflation. :

Shcnding policy and how the investment objectives relate to spending policy

The YMCA's spendmg policy-is currently 4% of the average total endowment vValue

over the trailing 5 years. In addition; the Boaid may authorize up to 50% of the

amount by which the 5 year average net total return exceeds the 5 year average annual

CPI. These funds will be spent on programs submitted with the annual budget-that is

approved by the Board of Trustees. The spending policy is implemented with the

intent not only to provide funds for the YMCA's immediate aims but also to preserve
-and grow assets to meet future spending needs:

Measurement of mvcstment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction cosis, and net of the
average annual spending amount. Total return i$ defined as dividend or interest
income, - plus rcallzcd and unrealized capital appreclatlon or depreciation at fair
market value.

Funds \'vith"deﬁéiencies

From time to time, the fait valué of assets associated with- individual donor rcslncted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or 'UPMIFA requiires the
YMCA to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. Deficiencies of this nature that are
in excess of Telated restricted amounts are reported in net ‘assets with donor
‘restrictions. As of May 31 2022 and 202[ there were no such amounts,
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‘Ndte 16. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED

The *YMCA proﬁldcs financial assistance, through contributions :dnd other
fundraxsmg, to help defray the costs of membership and program and other fées for
‘individuals with rieed. Members}np dues and program fees are recorded net of such
assistance in the “accompanying statements of activities. Such amounts - were as
foIlows for the years ended May 31:

2022 2021
Program fees $ 12,719,754 $ 6,567,769
Less finandial assistarice’ prowded (670,221) . (696_, 170)
Program fees, net $12,049,533  § 5,871,599
Membership dues $ 4,275,756 $2,825,621
Less finan¢idl assistance provided (666,006) (251,639)
Membership dues, net $ 3,609,750 $ 2,573,982

Note 17. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The YMCA participates'in the YMCA Retirement Fund Retirement Plan,:which isa
‘deﬁncd contribution, money purchase, church plan that is intended t6 satlsfy the
qiialification reghirements of Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

as amended and the, YMCA Retirement Fund Tax-Deferred Savings Plan,‘which is a
retirement iricome’.account plan as defined in section 403(b)(9) of the code. Both
plans :are sponsored by the Young Men’s Christian Association Retirement Fund
(Fund”). The Fund is a not-for-profit, tax exempt pension fund incorporated in the .
State of New York (1922), organized and operated for the purpose of providing
retirement: and other’ benefits for employees of YMCA's throughout the United
Statés: The plans are operated as church pension plans. Participation is ‘available to
ll duly organized and. reorganized YMCA's and their eligible employces Asa
defined contributiofi plar, the Retirement Plan and Tax-Deferred Savings Plan have
no unfunded benefit obllgatlons

" In accordancc with their agreement, contributions for the YMCA Retirement Fund
Retirement Plén are-& percentage of the : partscxpatmg employees’ salary These
.amounts are pmd by the' YMCA. For the years ended May 31,2022 and 2021, total
contributions ;charged- to. retitément costs aggregated $525 012 and $296,399,
respeclively. y

Contributions 1o the" YMCA Retirement Fund Tax-Deferred Savmgs Plan are
withheld from employees” salaries and remitted to the YMCA. Retirement Fund.
There is no maiching.emplgyer.contribution to this pian. -
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RELATED PARTIES

The YMCA is a  menber. association of the i\l;ational Council of Young Men's
Christian Associations of 'the; United Statés of America. The YMCA is an

_independent, autonomous organization, recognized as a member, but separate from -

Note 19,

the National Coiirigil. The”YMCA - must meet-annual certification requirements to
remain a member.

The YMCA pays dues to YMCA of the USA. For the years ended May 31 , 2022 and
2021, ‘dues expense was $232,927 and $131;387, respectively.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

" The YMCA entefed into a foticancelable lease agreement for office space with a

related ‘party in Manchester, New Hampshire that expired in June 2022. In March
2022 ‘as per the lease agreement, written'notice not to renew was :given within the
required 180 days prior fo. expiration. The YMCA ‘was granted a monthly lease
through August 31, 2022. The YMCA entered into a new noncancelable lease
-agreement for office Space if Manchester, New Hampshire that expires in August
2027. '

The YMCA leases equipment under operating leases which expire through April
2025. The YMCA 4lso leasés 60 parking spaces at $75 per space, per month, with a

2% annual increase..During fiscal year 2015, the YMCA entered into an additional

lease to rent 30 paiking spaces at $75 per space, per month, with a,3% annual
increase. Both parking lease agreements expire on May 31, 2025.

“The. minimum future’ commitments under the leases are as follows:

Year ending

- ‘May 31, Amount
12023 . $279,665
2024 . 256,012
2025 _ 233,758.
12026 81,207
2027 83,657

‘Thereafter - 14,010
Towl $048.300

"Fo_r.thje' years ended'May 31,:2022-and 2021, rént c‘kp‘ense for leased facilities and
equipment was approximately.$231,910 and $237,956, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Note 21.

The YMCA invests in various investinent’ secunues Investment securities are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level
of risk associated with certain mvestment securilies, it is at least reasonably possible
that changes in the values ‘of investment securities, will occur in the near term and

such changes could materially affect ‘the amounts feported in the statements of

financial position.

The spread of COVID-19 had forced the YMCA to, reduce program. offerings,
specifically overnight camp which was canceled, the reduced capacity mandated for
day camp and childcare, énd a significant reduction’in memberships. .

ACQUISITION

On June 1, 2021, the' YMCA .acquired the Concord Family YMCA (the.
"Orgamzanon") in Concord, New Hampshire. Upon the acquisition, the YMCA
assumed all of the assets and liabilities of the Organization. As a result of this
acquisition, the YMCA recognized income from the acquisition of $3,195, 712.
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The Granite YMCA
Board of Directdr
2024

Rob Glew (Past -Chair)

Morey Goodman

Ryan Gough

Matt Henry

Kerry Houston

Dbnna InDelicato

.Dé've Kuhn

Jodi Langellotti

‘Matt Leah\'f )

Deborah Blake Dempsey

Steve Lubelczyk

Dennis Malloy

Laila Miller

Lori Piper

Bob Pliskin

Wayne Robinson

Brett St. Clair

Helena laquinta

Joe Kenney

Gisele Rodriguez

Dpna!d Strokes Jr.

© Margaret Tomas (Vice—Chairl)
Henry Veilleux '
Jeremy Walker (c'urrent President)

Kellie Ward‘man
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Ryan Patrick Gadow

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 8 LEADERSHIP

Highly effective YMC_A Organizational Leaders approaching 30 years’ experience in membership, wellness, programs, -
youth development & camping, -giving & capital campaigns, facility & maintenance management, and general
operations. Commitment to servant leadership for the community, members, program participants, donors,,
valunteers, but most importantly to our employees with deep empathy and compassion; guiding, supporting, and
driving them to success. Offering an array of skills in optimizing operations, teambuilding, succession planning,
program & membership growth, community collaboration & connection, and member engagement. Proven abilities

- implementing creative, compassionate, data driven solutions that help maintain the warm personal local YMCA spirit.

WORK EXPERIENCE

The Granite YMCA d Manchester, New Hampshire September 2022- present
Chief Operating Officer
*  The The Granite YMCA is $27 million operating budget, five family branches, two youth branches (including
Early Learning Centers), three outdoor day camps, 2 overnight camps, Before & After Schoo! programs in -
four counties, Annual Giving Campaign of $800 thousand {events, person-to-person giving)
+  AsCOO, direct supervision of two Vice Presidents of Operations dver operations and youth development
- programs, Vice President of Properties, Assaciation Directors (support for different product areas) '
*  Responsibility include growth strategies for over $27 million of operations with $83,000 of operatlng
margln associate development, and community impact & giving

The Y in Central Maryland Baltimore, Maryland October 2016- April 2022
Senior Vice President, Member Experience

= The Y in Central Maryland $90 million operating budget, eleven famuly centers, two swim centers, five
preschools, two outdoor camps, Head Start program in three counties, Before & After School programs in
five counties, Annual Giving Campaign of $5 million {events, person-to-person giving)

»  As SVP, direct supervision of three Vice Presidents of Operations over family centers, swim centers, and
outdoor camps. Supervision also include three Senior Executives of product management (Membership &
Fitness, Swim & Programs, Community Connection & Giving)

«  Responsibility include growth strategies for over $43 million of operations with $11.9 million of operatmg
margin, associate development, and community impact & giving {pre-COVID financials, currently recovered
75% of pre-COVID operations/financials)

«  Create strategies to enhance engagement with members, supported Youjﬁ Development association
strategy, lead the operations team during COVID-19 crisis management, launched nutrition services, and
currently serve as the Executive Leader of the LBGTG+ Employee Resource Group

= Expand our Healthy Living/Chronic Disease outreach, built relationships with local hospitals and healthcare
providers to grow services in our centers to include flu shots/vaccines, health checks, LiveStrong, Diabetes
Management Programs, Nutrition Programs, and Wellness/Life Change Program

.= Collaborated to acquire camping properties and launched new outdoor/resident camp sites

. Supported and designed new renovations, layouts; and expansion of current centers aiong with help to

scope and analyzed new operating sites for family centers preschools, and camps
Valley of the Sun YMCA - , Phoenix, Arizona September 2009- October 2016
Senior Executive Director, Membership ‘

= The Valley of the Sun YMCA $30 million operating budget, sixteen family centers, three preschools, five to
ten Before & After School sites, Annual Giving Campaign of $1.5 million

= Hired as Director of Operatmns to open a new center, promoted to supervision a district (including the
Downtown YMCA and collaboration with Arizona,State University Center), and transition to association role
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to create synergy, standard operations, and strategies to grow membership; grew from $16 million to $22
million in five years '

*  Served on Senior Leadership Team to help support, guide, and operate the association during financial
struggles {potential bankruptcy), debt re-structuring, and recovery

- Created 3-year pricing strategy for a struggling association during the Great Recession that yielded
membership growth; focus on standard operations, connection poinuts with members, association call center
(in/out-inbound), enhanced corporate wellness program g

'« Directly supervised four branches totaling $6.5 million operating budget including partnership with Arizona
State University, 139 Room Residence Program for low income individuals and workforce development re-
structured branch boards, and branch turn-around for three different centers

= Opened a center from the final stages of constructions, recruiting entire staffing team from hiring to
training, launch membersh|p campaigns and strategies to grow the center to the largest center in the
association in six months (currently still maintains the largest center in the association}

YMCA WORK HISTORY

The Granite YMCA
COO0 $27 million operations
September 2022- present
The Y in Central Maryland
Regional VP $34 million district operating budget
Senior Vice President 543 million operating budget
Oct 2016- April 2022
Valley of the Sun YMCA
Senior Executive/District $6.5 million district operating budget two branch turnaround, branch closure
Senior Executive/Membership $22 million membership budget
Oct 2012- Oct 2016
Desert Foothills YMCA, Vaf!ey of the Sun YMCA
Director of Operations
Opened new branch, $2.7 million branch operating budget
Sep 2009- Oct 2012
Brandon Family YMCA, Tampa Metro YMCA
Senior Program Director/Operations Director
$1.7 million branch operating budget, including 5500k program budget, branch turnaround
Mar 2005- Mar 2008
Hernandao County Family YMCA, YMCA of the Suncoast
Agquatics Director, Senior Program Director -
5515k operating/program budget
Apr 2002- Jun 2004
Central YMCA, YMCA of the Triangle
Lifeguard, Assistant Director
Jul 2001- Mar 2002
" Cary Family YMCA, YMCA of the Triangle
Lifeguard, Program Coordinator/Director
Jul 1994- Jul 2001

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS

North Carolina State University, Bachelor of Arts

YUSA Organizational Leader

YUSA Faculty Intro to Fiscal Management

YUSA Trainer, Listen First, Intro Fiscal Management, Advanced Fiscal Management -



DocuSign Envelope 10: A419CCE2-DFD5-48C6-A72B-DC310572FC3C

NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name:

The Granite YMCA

. T ANNUAL | .
i : - AMOUNT PAID ANNUAL
NAME AIBIETLE FROMTHIS. |  SALARY

CONTRACT

Ryan Gadow Chief Operating Officer $26,000.00 $150,000.00

$0.00 50.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00_ $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (Q. 7

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
A N 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NR 03301

Intcrim Comemlssioner 603-271-5544 1-800-B52-3345 Ext. 9544
: . ) Fax:'603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-733-1964 www.dhhs.nbigoy
Katja S. Fox '
Direttor
July 21! 2023.
IHis Excellency, Governor Christopher T.'Sununu
and the Honorable Council
,State House

:Conoord New Hampshire 03301

Authorize the Department of Health and Murhan Services, Division for Behavioral Heaith,

on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs; to enter.into & Sole Source

‘contract with The Granite Young Men's Christian Association (VC#154139:8001), Manchester,

" NH, Inthe amount of $400,000 to provide a physical fitness and wellness reimbursement benefit

‘program for active NH military personnsl, with the ‘option to renev for up to’ five (5) additional

yearseffective upon Govemor, and Céuncil approval through June 30, 2024. 100% Other Funds
(Governor's Commission).

Funds are avallable in the following account.for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the -authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if. needed and
. Justified..

.05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL :SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN 'SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU :OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION 100% Other Funds {Governor Commission Fund)

State Class / : - g s - = N
FiscalYear |  Account Class Titlo Job Number | Total Amount
2024, 102-500731 Contracts for Prgm Sve | 92058501 '$400,000
- Tota) $400,000
EXPLANATION

‘Thig: request is Sole Source because the Départiment is séeking toeriter into a contract
(wrth thé Contractor in response: to a directive from the Governor's Commission oi Alcohol and
:Other Drugs. The Contractor is uniquely qualrﬁed to provide the services outlmed In the
Agreement as the Vendor and its member organizations have an extensive history of serving
:military , personne| . throughout New Hampshire including Gofistown, ‘Manchester, Concord,
‘Greater Londonderry, Seacoast, Strafford County, ‘and Somersworth. The Vendor wiil be working
with the Department to identify and recruit other YMCAs.in underserved areas of the. S!ate

The purpose of this request is to provide a physical fitnéss ‘and wellness- reimbursemant
;benefi t program for active NH milrtary personnel who otherwrse would not have the benefit.
Rrgorous schedules and frequent deployment can, add stressors to the lives of New Hampshire
mllrtary personnel resulting in behavioral health issues suchas depressron anxiéty and substance
;misuse. ;Studies indicate that active military personnel and veterans face unique. slresaors and
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;oﬂen dont seek help for beh:morat health ISSUes due to sligma and shams. Aooordmg to the-

age 18 to 25, oompared to the gemml population.

:Approximately 1500 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2024-

The Depanment will monitor services lhreugh the review of quanerly reports to ensure
‘contract defiverables are belng met.

‘AB referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the attached
;.:agreemenl the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up five (5)° addsttenal years,
-contingent upon satisfactory delwery of services, avallable funding. agreement of the parties and

- Govemor and Council approval.

‘Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request active NH military personnel
‘fhay not have access to a program that supports their wellbeing, which may lead to'increased
'stress levels and continued unhealthy coping mechanisms includmg substance use and misuse.
‘Area served: Statewide
In'the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. .Geneml Funds wil} not
'be requested to sispport this program.
Respectfully submitted,

uMLduHV\. For

Lori A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

‘The Dfpartmmt 6f Healih and Human Services’ Mission is to join commanitiés and families|
' ‘in providing | opportunilies for citizens lo achuw healih and lndrpcndmce.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
Subject: Physical Fitness and Wcllness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Military Personnel and their Famllies
(SS-ZDM-DBH-IS—PHYSI-OI)

Nolice! Thisagreemént and all of its attdchments shall become public upon submission to Goverrior.and
‘Executivé Coungil for.approval. Any information hat is private, confidential or proprietary musl
be c!carly ldenufcd to the agency nnd agreed lo in writing prior to signing the contract.

= RS . CAGREEMENT
Thie, State of New Hampshire and the Contracior hercby mutually agree as follows;

i GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. ‘ i ' e
1.1. State Agency Name —~ °~  °° 7 " .| 1.2 Suate Agency Address - 1

New Hampshire Dépariment of Héalth and Hnian Services 129 Pleasant Street
- e . Concord, NH 03301-3857.

T3 Contractor Narme' it - ‘, ¥.4 - Contractor Address ' : ' ’
The Granite-Young Meni’s Christian Associalion 670 North Commcrcial Su., Suite 103
. Manchester, NH 03101
1.5 Contracior Phone | J| 1:6. ‘Account Number 1.7 Completidbn Date - 1.8, ‘Price Limitation
‘Number e

R 05 95 92-9205!0 ) 6/30/2024 $400,000

603-623-3558 33820000 102-500731

1.9 Contraciing Officer for Swuate Agcncy . ‘ 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number _
Robert W. Moore, Director ' (603) 271-963 3

J.11 Coniractor Signature 7/25/2023 - ~ [ 112 Nameand Title oprnlractor Ssgnalory ;

Michele sheppard

Mld.u,h, S‘AWM”J, - Dater president and CEO : .

1.13  Siate Agency.Signpture . ‘g/7/3023 I.14 Name and Title of State AgencySngnalory .
DocuBiined by: ) Katja §. Fox

K"‘?“ S Fox 2uE Director ' '
.Approval by ( € N.H. Dcpanmcnt of Administration, ‘Division of Personnel (if apphcable) )

éy: o N . Dtrector On

1.16 Appmval by the Attorney Gencrnl (Form, Substancc and Exccunon) (if applicable}
Deculigned by:

. By: nﬂ% Guisinn ¢ . 8/8/2023
117 Approval yl?&‘ﬁvcmornnd Executive Councnl Af fapphcab}e) ; ) -

- G&C liem number; - G&C:Meeting Date:

[y = B

: Page 1 of 4 :
: " i ol ~ Contractor Initials

- . - i ' Datc" ; 2‘5; 2023

-
tew
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L SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. Thc Sunc of New
‘Hampshlre acting through the agency- 1dcnut‘ od in block 11

("State"), engages contractor identified” in block 13

("Contractor™) to perform, and the Comraclor shall pcrl‘urm the
work or sale of goods, or both, identificd and more pariicilnrly
;dcscnbcd in the atached EXHIBIT B which is mcorporatcd

herein by reference {'Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Nolwithitanding &ny provision of this Agreemen| 10 the’

contsary, and ‘subject to ‘the approve] of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, |fappllcublc,
this Agreemeni, and all obligations of the parties hcrcundcr shatl

become: cfiective on the date the ‘Govemor~ and "Execitive .
-Council .approve this Agreemcm as ‘indicated in block 1:17,

uniess rio such approval is required, in which ¢ case'the Agrccmcm
shall become effective 6n the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block"1.13 (“Effective Date™), .

3.2 If the Contractor commences -the Services: prior 10" lhc_
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Conlractor prior to
the Effcclwc Daie -shall be performed at ‘the sole nsk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrecmcm does riof become

effective; the State shall have no liability t6 the: Conuractor,

incliding without limitation, any -obligatioi 1o pay ‘the
Contractor for any costs inciimed or Services performed.

Contractor must complc:c all Services by the Complelion Date ..

spccul' ed in block 1.7:

" 4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMEN

Notwithstanding any provision of “this Agreemcnl fo ‘the "

-contrary, all obligations of (hé State hcrcundcr, mcludmg,
without hmllauon ‘the continuance of payments. hercundcr. dre

contingent upon the: avatlabrllly afid continuéd appropnmmn of
funds affected by any $tatc -or federal legistative or executive:

action .that reduces, eliminates or .othérwise! modifics -the
appropriation or avaitability of funding for-this’ Agrccmcnt and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, ’in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for Iny payments
hercunder in excess of such avmlnhle npproprmtcd funds. Inthe
evenl of rcducuon or.termination of appropnnted funds, ‘the
" State shall have the right to .withhold payment uniil such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to-reducé or
terminai¢ the Services under. this Agreement’ immédiately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction ‘of temination.
The Siaie shall not be required 16 transfer funds. from any other
‘accoirit or source 1o the Account :dcnuﬁcd in block J.6 in:the
elent, funds m that -Account are reduced. or unavailable,

. 5 CONTRACT PRICEJPRICE LIMITATIO\U

_ PAYMENT.

LA 1 The contract price, method of paymcnt andlcrms of payment
-ane udenuﬁcd and more pamculariy described in EXHIBIT C
‘which is incorporatéd herein by referénice.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract’ pnce shall be the'
'only aiid the complete reimbursement to the Coritractor for'all
‘expensés, of whatever nature incurfed by the Commctor in’the,
‘performance hereof, and shall be. the only and_the: complelc

: .Page20of4 *

oompcnsauon 10 the Contractor for-the Services. Thc State shall’

have no Tiability to the Contractor ather than the contract price.

‘5.3 The State reserves the right to 6ffset from any amounts’
* olhérwise payable to the Contractor under this Agréément those

tiquidated amounts requifed or permitied by N.H. RSA 807

through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Nolwithstanding ‘any provision in this Agreemcnl 10 the,

conirary, and notwithsianding. unexpected circumstances, in no’

«event shall the total of all payments ; authorized, or actually made~

hereunder, e\:cwd the Price Limitation set forth in blogk 1.8. .

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
‘OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneclion with lhe performance of the Services, ‘the
Contractor shall comply with all opplicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or mumcnpal
authorities ‘which impose :any obligation or duty upon the.
Contractor, mcludmg. but not limited to, civil rights and cqual
employtnent opportumtylaws In addition, if this Agrcement is

funded in any part by monies ol'the United States, the Contractor

shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations:

-and statites, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the

State or the United States issue to-implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply.with ail applicable inellectual -~
property laws.

. 6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not.

discriminate againsi cmploytcs or.applicants for cmploymcm
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientalion, or national origin and will 1ake affirmative action (o
prcvcnl ‘such discrimination,

.6.3. The Coniractor agrees lo permit the State or United Sla!cs
‘access to any of the Contractlor’s books, records and accounts for
- the purpose of a.sccrtamlng compliance with all niles, regulations,

ond orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of lhns,
Agrecment.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own cxpcnsc provide all personncl
necessary to perform the Services. The.Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 6 -
pceform the “Services, ‘and shall be properly licensed and
othenvisc authorized to.do'so under all apphcable laivs.

7.2 Unless othenwise authorized in \\'rllmg, during ihe term:of
this Agrecmens, and for a period of six (6) months afler. Lhc
Complelion Date in'block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shatl nol permil any- subcomruclor or other person, fimm or.

.corp-orauun with-whom it is engaged in a combined ‘¢ffort to
perform the, Ser\'iccs io hire, any person who'is o State employes

or official, who 18 matenally invalved in .the procurement;
‘adminisiration -or performance” of this Agreement, Thi¢
provision shall survive fermination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Coniracting Officer specified in'block 1.9, or his or her

"$UCCEss0r, shall be the State’s representative. ‘[n the event'of any’

disputc .cuticeming the, interpretation of -this Agreement, the

‘Contracling Officer's decision shall be fingl Tor the Slnle

Contractor Initials

Datm
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8 EVENT OF DEFAULTIREMEDIES

8. l Any onc or morc of the following.scts or omissions of the
Conlractor stiall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default"):

8.1.) ‘failure 10 perform the Seivices satisfacterily or on
schedule;

8 1.2 failure to submit any repon rcqunred hcreunder and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or ccmdnmn of
lhls Agrecrent, )

8.2 Upon the occurrence: :of any Event of Default, the State may
mkc any on¢, or more, or.al}, of the follmvmg actions:

- 830 give the Contractor-a written nofice speclfymg the Event of
Defanlt ind requiring it to be rémedied within, in ihe absence of
a-greater or lesser specification of time, thiny (30) doys from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not umely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afler giving the
Contractor nolice of iermination;:

3.2.2give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evéniof -

Defaull and suspending all paymcnls to be made under this

Agrecmcnl and ordering that the poruon of the contract price

which would otherwise accrue to the Contracior during the
period. from the date of such notice until-such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8 2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eveat of
* Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
- owe to the Contraclor any dnmnges the State sulfers by reasan of
eny Evcnt of Default; and/nr
B.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice spccnfymg the Evcm of
Dcfaul!, rcal the "Agreement as bréached, ‘terminnte the
Agreementand pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
" both.
8.3. No failure by (he State to enforce any provasmns hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Cvent of Default, or any subsequem Event of
Defoult. No express failure 1o enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the nght of the State to enforce each and
a!l of the prov:smns hcreor upon any furthcr or other Even! of
Defauh on the part of the Commctor

“9. TERMINATION. o
‘9.1 Notwithitanding paragraph 8, ‘the’ State’ may, at ils ‘sole
"dnscrenon terminate the Agrecmcnt for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thiny (30) days. writien notice to the Conu'aclor that
4lhc Slaic is exercising its option to terminale thc Agreement,
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreemeni for
BRY reason. othcr than the complellon of the Scmccs, '‘ihe
~Contractor shall, at ‘the :Stale’s discretion, deliver to “the
. Contracung Ofﬁccr not laier than fifieen (15) days afier the daté
:of términation, a report (“Tefnination-Repor™) descnbmg in
«detail all Services performed, ‘anid the contract price camed, 10
-and including the date'of, termination. The form, subject matter,
‘content, and number. of copies; of the T cnmnauon Report shall
;be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B In addition, at thc State’s discretion, the Contraclor
,chnll wnhm IS dnys of notice ofenr!y ten-mnauon dcvelop and

-subrml lo the Slatc [} Tmnsntuon Plan for ‘services' ‘under. thc
Agrecmem

10. D"ATNKCCESS!CONFIDENTIALITYI
PRESERVATION.

10.1-As used:in thls Agreeiment, the word “dala” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during'the
‘performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of; this
Agreement, including, butnot limited to, a) studies, reponts,
files, t‘ormulae surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
rccordmgs pu:torml reproduc!rons drawings, analyses, gm.phtc .
reprcsemauons compuier Pprograms, computer printouts, nates,
lelers, memoranda; papers, and documents, all whether
finished oF unfinished. .

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from

_ the State or purchnsed with funds provided for lhat purpose |

undee this Agreement, shal be the praperty of the State, and
.shatl be retumned 1o the State upon demand or upon termination
ol'lhns Agrccmcm for any reéason.

10.3.Confidéntiality of dain shall be governed by N.H. RSA
‘thapiér 91:A'or other.existing law. Disclosure 6f data requires
priorwritien opproval of the State,

il CONTRACTOR 'S RELATION TO THE. STATE Inthe
'pcrformancc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an mdcpcndcm coatyactor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the S!atc Neither the, Conlmctor nor any -of-its
officers, cmp!oyees ‘agenis or mcmbers shall have authomy to
‘bind the Staie or reccive any benefils, workcrs compensation or
-other emoluments provided by the Staie to its cmployees

12 ASSIGNMENTIDELEGATIONISUBCONTRACTS
12.1 The Contractor shall nol assign, 6r otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreemient without the'prior written notice, which

-shall be prowdcd to the State at Jeast fifteen (15) days prior, to

' the assignment, and a written consent of the State, For purposes

of ‘this paragraph a Change of ~Control shnll constitute
‘assignment,, "Changc ~of. Control” means (a) mcrger
¢onsolidation, or a lransacuon or series of relatéd transactions in
which“a third party, together with its affiliaies, becomes the
direct- or indirect owner of fifty percent:(50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity. intéfests, or combined voting.
power ol the’ Conlraclor or'(b} thesale of all or, subslanually all
ol'lhe ‘assets of lhe Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services . shall be; subcontractcd by the
‘Contraclor w1(hDUl prior writlen notice and consent: of the State,
Thc S[alc is cnmlcd iocopies of all subcom.racts and assignment
_agreemcms nnd shali not be bound by any provisions conlamcd
ina subconuact or an assngnmcm agreement to which n isnol 2

pasty.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Urnless othénvise'exempted by law,
‘the Cantractor shall indeiinify and hold harmless the State; its
officers and ‘employees, frony and agamsl any and all claims,
:habllmcs and costs for any personal injury or property damagcs :
Jpatent or copynghl infringement, or other claims: nsscnad againsi ~
the Sta!c its officers or cmplnyccs whlch arise out of(or which

may-be- clmmcd to Arise out of) the'nls or omi of the
~ Pdge 354 !"*»S

Contractor. Initials
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d Contrnctor. or subcomractors, mcludmg but not Ilmugd to the

=ncghgence recklcss or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13: Notwithstanding the foregoma. nothing herein

i econlnmcd shall be deerned to constitute o waiver of the sovereign

immunity of the State, which i lmmumly is hereby reserved 10 the

* Siaté, This icovenant ‘in ‘paragraph 13 .shall survive- ‘the

.tcnmnauon of this. Agrccmcm

14 INSURANCE
14.1 The Contractor,-shall, at ils_sole expense, obiain and’
< continuously >maintain’ in force, and shall rcquire . any

*subcontractor-or- assngncc to obtmn‘nnd maintain in force, the
fo!!owlng insurance:
.14 1. I commcrclal gcncml hab:hry msurance ngamst alf claims

;less than' $1 000 000 pcr occun'cncc and $2 000,000 aggregaic .

OF €XCesS; and
14,1,2 spcc:al cause of loss coverage form covering all property

.\subjecl o subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than

,80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

142 The pollc:tcs described in subparagraph 14.1 hercin shall be
on policy formis and endorsements approved for.usc in the State
:6f New Hampshire by the N.H, Department of Insurance, and
‘issued by insurérs ticensed in the Stae of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contiactor shall fumnish to the Coritracting Officer
|dcnuﬁcd in block 1.9, 6r his or her successor; a cernﬁcal:(s) of
.insurance -for all. insurance required under lhis Aprecment.,
Contractor shail also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1. 9 or-his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
‘latcr than ten (IO) days prior (o the up:muon date of cach
‘indurance pohcy “The certificate(s). 6f insurance and any
[renewals thcreof shall be altached and are mcorporalcd herein by
refcrcncc - o
'IS WORKERS‘ COM PENSATION

15.1. By signing’ this agreement, the Contractor agrees, centifies
.and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt

from the requirementis.of N.H. RSA chapier 28l-A (" Workers '

:Cowpensanan .

15.2 To the extent the Commctor is subject to the requirements
.of N'H; RSA! :thapter 281-A, Contraclor shall. maintain, and
‘réquire ‘any Subcontractar of assignee 10 secire and maintain,
:payment of ‘Workers' .
‘activities whnch 1hc person proposes to undertake pursuan to this
-Agreemenl Thc Comraclor ‘shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, ot his or her" successor, proof of Workers'
Compcnsatlon in lhe ‘manier deqcnbed in N.H. RSA chapier
281°A and any, apphcablc rcncwal(s) lhcrcof whtch shall be
attached end are incorporated herein by rcfcrence
shall nét be rcsponsnblc for paymeit’ of ony Workers'
Compcnsauon prcmlums or far’ any other tlaini or benefit for
‘Cotitractor, or any subcontractor ‘or eiiployeé. of Conlractor,

whnch m1gh| drise unider appl:cnb!c Sinte of New Hampshire -

Workers Compénsationn ‘laws .in~ connection with the
iperformance of the;Services under this Agreement.

Png'e 40f4.

‘Compensalion in  Conriection with'

The Swate

i6. NOTICE. Any nonce by a party hcrcto 10 the" ‘other party
shull be deemed to have been duly dclwcrcd or givem at the time
of mailing by centified mail; poslagc prcpand in a United Slalcs
Post Office addressed to the parties nt the addresses given ‘in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agréérient iriay, b amerded, waived

or discharged_ only by an’insiruiriént i .writing Signed by the.
perties hereto”and only aﬂcr ‘approval of such amendment;,

waiver or dischorge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Siate of New Hnmpv.huc unless. no such approval is rcqmrcd‘

18.'CHOICE OF LAW AN D.FORUM.— This Agrccmcnl shall
be governed, interpreted and construed:in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire,“dnd is bmdmg upon and
inures 1o the benefit of the pariies and their respective successors.
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording.
chosen by the parties (o express.their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shali be applied against or in favor of any penty.
Any aclions arising out ol this ‘Agreement shall be ‘brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shatl have
cxc!uswc Jjurisdiction ‘therzof.

‘19, CONFL[CT[NG TERMS Ii the ‘evedit of a conﬂlct:
between the tenns of this P37 form (as modified i in EXHlBlT
A) and/or aitachments and: amendment thereof, the ‘terms of the
‘P-37 (as modified in EXH.’.BIT ‘A) shall contro).

20. THIRD PARTIES. ‘The parties heéreio do- not intend to
benefit any thind partics and this * Agreement’ shall not bc
conslmcd to confer any sich benefit,

21.. HEADINGS. The headings lhroughout the Agre¢ment are* -
for reference purposes Only,‘and the words ‘contained thereii
shall in no way be held to.¢xplain, modlfy, amphfy or aid-inthe
interpretation, consiruction or’ meamng of thc provisions ‘of this,
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL’ PROVISIONS. Addilional “or modx[‘ymg_-
pmvus:ons set forth in the: nuachcd EXHIBI T A ar¢ mcorpumtcd '
hcrcm by reference. ! 3

23 SEVERABILIT\’ Iri‘thc‘i:“\-'fm'any‘ér :h‘c prdiriéibn"s o‘f lhis

‘cantary’o any slale or federal law The’ rcmmmng provisions of

~ this. Agrcemcnt will remain in full force and cffect;

-.-.\

deemed an original, constitutes lhc entire lngrccmcm and. :
undcrslandmg belweén ihe. pames and supemedcs alt prlor'
agrécments and undcrslandmgc withi rcspccl 1a the subjccl mattcr'
hereot.

o4

. - : 'MS i
Coftractor Inifials =
> :.D.-,ﬂte.:" i
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.New 'Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Military
Personnel:and their Families

i

EXHIBIT A

1.

§5-2024-DBH:25PHYSI0N A2 ' Contractor fnilials’

Tho Granite Young Men's Chrislian Associstion  * Page 10f 1 . ' b_l A

Revisions to Standard Agreément Provisions

Revrsrons 1o Form P. 37 General Provisions

Paragraph 3, Effectrve DateICompIetron of Servrces is amended by addmg
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may-extend the Agreement for up to five (5) additional years

1.

1.2,

from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery. of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the:

Govermorand Executrve Council.

Paragraph 12, AssignmenUDelegatron!Subcontracts is amended by addrng |
_’subparagraph 12.3-as follows:

. 12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual condltions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliancé with those conditions. The Contractor shall have wiitten
agreements with all subcontractors, specrfyrng the work to be performed

and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with'

‘the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability ‘Act.  Written -

agreements shall specify how corrective’ action shall be managed The
Contractor-shall manage the subcontractor s performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shiall. :
annhually provide the State with a list of all-subcontractors provided for

.under this Agreement and notify . the State of any Inadequate

subcontractor performance -

7/25/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human. Serwces
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Mllltary
Personnel and their Familiés

EXHIBIT B

1. -Statement of Work
11,

1.2,

1.3.

T 132,

_ ‘Scope of Services

The Contractor must'dévelop and implement a physical fitness and wellness
relmbursement benefit program, .herein after referred to as the Military
Wellness Relmbursement Program (MWRP) for active NH military personnel.,

1.241.

1.2.2.

The Contractor must'ensure the MWRP is available at:
-The *Granite.Yoting Men's Christion Association (YMCA} in NH,

which mcludes the following locations: .

1.2.1.1. YMCA Allard Center of Goffstown:

1.2.1.2. YMCA of Concord;

1.2.1.3. YMCA of Downtown Manchester;

1.2.1.4. YMCA of Greater Londonderry;

1.2.1.5:.. YMCA of the Seéacoast;

1.2,1.6. YMCA of Strafford County; and

1.2.1.7. The Granite YMCA of Somersworth: and

Other YMCA" locallons in NH; as approved by the Department

The Contractor must ensure eligible individuals are offered the following
reimbursement benefit options, once:per year:

1.3.1.

Reimbursement of up to $450.00 ($37 50 per month) mdwndual
'YMCA meimbérship dues; or :

Relmbursemenl Lof $200.00 for h"ome exercise equnpment th'a’t
prowdes cardiovascular or muscular total-body workout; purchased
new. Eligible equipment must be purchased new and includes, butis. .
not limited to:

1.3:2.4. Treadmills. .

1.3.2.2. Stationary _cycles.'
1.3:2.3. 'Bike stands.

1.3.24. ;Stair,-'CIimb,in,c_}_‘machihes.
1.3.2.5, Elliptical machines.

1.3.2.6. ,Rowmg machlnes
1. 3.2.7. Total- body weight resistance machmes
1.3.2.8. .Cross- country ski ‘machines.

1.4, The Conlractor must venfy ellglbmty of each MWRP applicant and mus‘t ﬁ%uwe

SS~2024-OBH 25-PHYSI-01
The Granlie'Young Men's Chiisiian Association Page’t'ol : : Dale

:'3;2_'0_\. " Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and. Human Services’
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benéfit for Active NH Military
Personnel and thelr Families’

EXHIBIT B.

VS The: Contractor must create a MWRP development and implementation plan 2
that mcludes but is not limited fo policies. and procedures for: t
; ' 1,6.1. Eligibllity verification. "
) 1:6:2: Membership application, renewal,. and't'erminétion
1.5.3, Submission, approval, and remittanceé of relmbursement requests
1.54. 'Detalled timeline that includes berichmarks and mllestones
-16. The: ‘Contractor must submit the. development and implementation plan to the
Department, for approval, within 30. days of the Contract Effective Date.

1.7. The Contractor must.collaborate with the Department to create a pre and Dost

enroliment MWRP questionnaire t6 be ¢ompleted by each approvéd and
* enrolied individual.

1.8. The: Contractor must promote’ the MWRP through the creation and
dissemination of informiational items, which may include but is not limited to
fiyers. The Contractor must ensure informational items are approved by the’
Department prior to disSemination,

- 1.9. The. Contractor must administer disbursg, manage, - and monitor MRP.
" ©  reimbursement funding, ensuring records account for all costs and
expenditures associated with the MWRP.

1.10. The Contractor must maintain documentation of all MWRP application requests$
and reimbursement remittance. The Contractor must ensure documentation
incliides, but is not hmlted to:

1.10:1. Date of applicatlon submlttal

1.10.2; Verification of eligibility. -

1.10.3. Date of MWRP gnrollment or demal If the appllcatlon is denied,
reason for denial must be included. .

1.10.4. Reimbursement. benefi itoption chosen.

1.10.5.. Relmbursement .amount.

1.10.6.. Remittance date.

1.10.7.. Proof of payment.

1.10.8., Date-of-and reason for MRP-termination. '

1.11. The Contractor must pamctpate in meetings with the Department ona quarterly
basis; or. as otherwnse requested by the Department ) .

3 ' A M‘S‘ .
. §5-2024:D8H-25-PHYSI-01 R - X o .;j:qnt;acip;_lnnuans[:_’_

. " The Granlle Young Men's Christian Adsociation Page2of 5 E o Dale _

presentatton of a valid, active NH: Mtlltary identification at the time of application.
to participaté-in programs identified in Sectioh 1.3, 'and-annually thereafter.

7/25/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human- Services
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Military

. Personnel and their. Families

EXHIBIT B

4.42. Reportlng

14241,

The Contractor must submit quarterty repons to. ‘the Depanment

) ',whlch include, but are not limited to:

1122

2. Exhibits Incorporated

1.12.1.1. Number of applications reeei\‘ce'd.
1.12.1.2. Verification of eligibility.

1.12.1.3. . Reimbursemant benefit option chosen.
1.12.1.4.. Reimbursement amount.

41:12.1.5. Remittance date.

1.12.1.6.. Proof of payment,

1.12.1.7. Date of and reason for MWRP termrnalron

1.142.1.8. Total number of active NH military personnel.served.

1.12.1.9. Total number of reimbursement beneﬁts provrded broken
out by benéfit option type. ’ '

1.12.1.10. Aggregate pre and post enroliment MWRP qugstionnaire
resuits.

The Contractor may be requrred to provide other data and metrics to
- the Depariment in a format specified by the Department..

i24. The Contractor must manage &ll confidential data related fo this Agraement in
accordance with the terms..of Exhibit D, DHHS Information Security
Requirements which is attachad hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3 Additional Terms

3:1. lmpacts
394,
'32. Federal

Resulting. from Court Orders or. Legislative Changes

The Contractor. agrees- that, 4o-the extent future state or federal
legislation or ‘court orders may have an impact ‘on the Servrces.—.r
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service, priorities
and expenditure requrrements under this Agreement 80 as to achieve
compliance thérewith.

Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Llnguistically _

.-Appropriate Programs and Services.

3.2,

85. 2024 DBH 25-PHYSI-01

The Granlis Young MER's. Chrlstlan Assoclation Page3ol5

The Contractor- must submit, within ten (10) days ‘of the Agreement
Effective Date, a: detaﬂed descnptlon of the communicatlon ‘access,’
and Ianguage assistance services lo. be provided :to .Bnsure
meaningfui access to programs and/or servicgs to individia
limited English proficiency; individuals'who are deaf:or hav: e

¥

- B2.0 ; Contmclorlnluals .'
7/25/2023
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New ‘Hampshife Départment of Health and Human Services
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Mllltary

Personnel and their Families

/ EXHIBIT B

ioss ‘individuals who are blind or have low vision; ‘and mdswduals who‘
‘have speech challenges. ;

3.3 Ctediis and Copyright Ownership

331,

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performanice .of the'

'services of the Agreement must include the foilowing statément, “The,

preparation of this (report, document elc.) was financed under an.
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and,

‘Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New:

: Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available-or
-required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human:

332

3.3.3.°

Services.”

\All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have

‘prior approval from the Department before pnntlng. produgtion,
'distribution or use.

The Department must retain copyright awnership for ‘any and :all.
original materials produced, including, bul not limited to: -

. 3,331, Brochures.
3.33.2. Resource directories. N
3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
3334 - Posters. ' '

3.3.4,

3.3.35. Reporis.

‘The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under thé
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliancé with Laws and Regulations.

3.4.1..

88-2024.DBH-25-PHYSI-01 -
The Gronile Young Men's Chrisiian Agsociation Pagedol 5

Inthe operahon of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
" imust comply with all faws, .orders and regulations of federal,. state,

county and municipal authorities and with any direction of:any Public

iOfficer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order:gr
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the. ‘facility.or-
the, provision of the services at such facility. If- any. governmental

Ilcense or-permit must be required for the operatron of the said facility
or the” performance of the said services, the' Contractor will procure:
said licensé or permit, and will at'all times comply With the terms and’
condltions of each such license ‘or ‘permit. In connection with' the.
Iforegoung requiremerits, the Contractor hereby covenarits and agregs:
that, during thie term of this Agreement the facilities must-comply with.
all riles, orders, regulations, and requiremerits ‘'of the Staté @ of

820 1 Gontraclor lnmals -
™ 7/ 25 / 202 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Military -
Personnel and their Families

EXHIBIT B -

4. Records _
The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4

4.2,

S8-2024-DBH-25-PHYS)-01 - ' 820 Conlractor Inifals
" “The Graiite Young Men's Chilstidn ASsocialion ~ * Pago5 ol

411,

442

the Fire,Marsha! and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and .
tegulatlons

Books, records, ‘dociiments and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by tha .
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received

or coliected by the Contractor.

All- records' must be maintained in accordance with ‘accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, recoerds, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, .
requisitions for matérials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls .and other records requested or required by

the Department.

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained -pursuant. to the Agreement for purposes of audit;

‘examination,-éxcerpts and. transcnpts

If upon réview of the Fina! Expendnture Report the Department must disallow

. any expenses, clalmed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the'Department .. -
-retains the right, at its discretion, t6 deduct the amount of such expenses as

are disallowed or to recover such sums from the. Contractor.

7/25/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Physical Fitness and Wellness Reimbursemént Benefit for Active NH Military
Personnel and their Families" 3

‘EXHIBIT C

' Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by: =
1.1.  100% Other funds (Governors 'Commission‘)
- 2. Forthe purposes of this Agreement the Departmen! has identified: -
2.1. The Contractor asa Subreclplent based on criteria in 2 CFR 200.331.

"3. Payment shall be on a .cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agréement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specnf ed in Exhibit C-1 Budget Shest.

4. The Contractor must subniit an’invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the-quarter in which the Services were provided. The Contractor must ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includesthe Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon reglstering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2, s submitted in a form that is prowded by or-otherwise acceptable to the
Depariment.

4.3. Identifies ‘and requests paynent for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4, Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice.
that may include, but are .not limited to::time sheets; payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5..' Is'completed, dated and retumed to the. Department with the suppomngv
documentation for allowable expenses to'initiate payment, 2

486. Is assngned an electronic mgnature includes suppaorting dacumentation,
and Is ‘emailed t6 dhhs. dbhlnvomesbdas@d hhs.nh.gov or manled to:

Financial Manager -

Department of Health and Human Services:
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department-shall make payments to ‘the Coritractor within 30 days- of:
receipt of @ach invoice and supporting docuientation for authorized expenses;
subsequerit | to approval of the submitted invoice. .

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for- authonzed expenses shall
be.due to the Department no later thar*40 days after the contract completion
date specf ed in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, :.Completion Date..

tp——08
: - | M
$5.2024-DBH-25-PHY 5101 _ c-2.0 Contracior Inltials__

\ : N . ' 772572023
The Granile Young Men's Chrisliah Assoiation Page 1:012 Dale i i
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‘New Hampshire Department of Health and Human. Services b

‘Physical Fitness and Wellness Reambursement Benefit for-Active NH Mllltary

Personnel and their Families
EXHIBIT C

7, Noththstandmg Paragraph.17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited ‘to adjusting amounts' within the price limitation and adjusting
-encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines throughthe
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both: parties, without

; .obtaining approval of the Governor and Executlve Colincil, iif rieeded and
Justified. ; -

8. Audnts

8.1.The Contrector must email an annual audlt to dhhs am@dhhs nh. gov if
.any of the following conditions exist:

8._1_.1. Condition .A - The Contractor expended $750,000 0r 'more in
federal funds received as a subrecnpnent pursuantto 2.CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year: :

:8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
. requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to_charitable
# organizations receiving support of $1, 000,000 or-more. )

¢ 8.1.3. Condition C - The Conlractor is a-public company and required
: by Security and Exchange Comimission' (SEC) regulations to -
submit an annual financlal audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit.an annuat Single

+ Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after” the ‘close of the

- Contractor's fiscal- year, ‘conducted in' -atcordance  with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform

Administrative - Requirements, Cest Printiples, .and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards. '

.8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of- -any Single Audit findings
"and any ‘associated correctlve action plans The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
impiementatton of the corrective action plan:

8.3. If Condition B or.Condition ‘C ‘exists, the Contractor shall ‘submit an
g annual financial audit performed by -an independent CPA within 120
' days after the close of the Contractors-fiscal year.

8.4,  Any ‘Contractor that receives | an amount” equal to or greater than.
$250,000 froni the Départment during a-single-fiscal year regardléss
of the funding source, may be required, at a miriimum, to submit annual
financial audits’ performed by an independent CPA if the Department s
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor. | |s hlgh-nsk

. B5. in addition to, and not in any way in limitation :of obllgatlons of- the '
Agreement, it is understood dnd agreed by thé Contraétor t rathe

.55-2024-08H-25-PHYSI-01 _,-c-z.o_ : Gonlmclpr!nirlla[s__ N
B TR : L o .. 7/25/2023
The Granite Young Men's Christian Assoclation Page'2.0!3 : Dato, 7/23/2
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New' Hampshira Department of Health and Human Services
_Physical Fitnéss and Wellness Reimbursement Benefit for Active NH Mllitary
Personnel and their Families -~ .

.. ) EXHIBIT C

L

Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
“and $hall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, of which have been

disallowed because of such an except;on

a k : , M&
¢ §5-2024:DBH-25:PHYSIDI . : €-20.. Conlractor inilials 2
' ' ?/25/2023
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~New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D. '
DHHS "lnformatl.o.n Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be Teflected.and have the described r‘n_ea.ning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss " of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
' unauthorized acquisition, unauthonzed access, or any similar term referring {o
gituations where persons other than'authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpase have access .Or potenllal -access to personally identifiable Informatién,
whether physical or electronic. With régard to Protected Health Information, * Breach"
shall have'the same meaning -as ‘the term “Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
‘Code of Federal Regulations.

1

2. "Compuler Security- Incident” .shall havé the same meaning "Computer Security
tncident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National institute ‘of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

- 3: "Confi dentlal Information™ or-“Confidential Data” means -all’ confidential information
' disclosed by 'ong party fo the. other such as a!l medical, -health, fmancnal publ:c.
assistance beriéfits and: .personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatme_nt Records, Case Records, Protected Heallh Information and -
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also inciudes” any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Departmerit of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or. accessed in lhe course of performing contracted services
. --of which collection, disclosure,. protectlon and disposition is governed by state ar
lederal law or régulation: This infoimation includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information {PHD), Personal Infofmation (PI) Personal Financial lnformatlcn
(PFl) Federal Tax Information (FTIJ Social Secunly Numbers (SSN), Paymenl Card
‘Industry (PCI) and.or other sensitive.and confidential information.

4. “End User" means any person or éntity {e.g., conlractor, contractor's émployee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
‘data or denvalwe data in accordance with the terms of this: Contract

5, ‘HIPAA” méans the Health InsraTce Portabxllly and Accountablllly Act of 1996 and
‘the regulahons promulgated thereunder’

* 6. "‘lncldent means an act that polenllally vuolales an expllcn or implied secunty policy,
‘which includes attempts (either failed or. successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
:system or its data, unwanted dlsruphon or-denial of service, the unauthorized use of”
:a system for the processnng or. storage of data; and changes to system hardware;
fflrmware or software characlenstlcs ‘withaut the owners knowledge lnslrucllon o1

o |'ﬂf~"-s
iContractor Inlials’ Ne—ae .

V5. Lot update 10/08/18 . 7/25/2023:
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D
DHHS Information Security Requlrements,

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical 'of eléctronic
mail, all of which may have the potential ta put. the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure; -modification or deslruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network® means -any network or.segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Harnpshtres Departmeni of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected, network (desrgned tested, and approved by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not edequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PF|, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or "PI") medns information which can be used to drsungursh-
or trace an rndrwdual s identity, | such as their name, social secunty number, persenal
“information as deF ned in New Harnpshlre RSA 359 C 19 brometrrc records elc.,,
or Imkable to a specrr ¢ individual, such as date and place of brrth mother's- marden.
name, eic.

9. “anacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information.at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under -HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services..

10. "Protected Health Information” (or ‘PHIPY has the same meaning ‘as prowded in the
definition of “Protected Health Information® in the HIPAA Privacy Rule'at 45 CF.R. §
160.103. -

“11. “Security Rule” shall. mean the Security- ‘Standards for-the: Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information at 45 C.F.R.. Part 164, Subpart C, and améndments .
thereto ’

12, Unsecured Protected Health Informauon ‘means Protécted Health Infdrmation that is
"~ not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health lnformahon ‘
" unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized’ andrvrduats andis developed
or endorsed by a standards developing -organization, that is " aceredited by the
Amencan Naiional Standards Institute.

ik RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

2

A Busrness Use and D:sclosure of Confidentiai. Information.
1. The Contractor fust not use, disclosé, maintain or transmil Confidéntial |nformat|on
except as reasonably necessary as-outlined ‘under this! Conlracl Further, :Contractor,

’ including but not limited to alt its directors, . oﬁrcers employees and agents; must not’
use; disclose, maintain.or transmit PHIin any manner that would constitute a violation

of the Privacy and Security Rule..
. % - - m‘
[ MS
Cahtractor Initials
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‘New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
| ~ Exhibit D
DHHS Information Security Requirements

¢

-y

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confi denllal Information in responsa to a request’.
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena etc.,
‘without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportumty to consent or, objeci to.
the dusclosure

"3, If DHHS nolifies the Conlraotor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional’

~ restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the anacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
?addltlonal restrictions and must not d:sclose PHI in wolahon of auch addlllonal
restrictions and must abide by any additional secunty safeguards

The ‘Contractor agrees that DHHS Dala or denvatwe there from disclosed to an End
User. must only be used pursuant to the terms of thns Contract.

5. _The Contractor agrees DHHS Data’ obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not |nd|cated in this Contract.

":u‘.

6. The Contractor agress to grant access to the data to the authorized repiesentatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance wuth the terms of this-
Conlfact. . )

W, METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Eru:ryphon if End User is transmlttrng DHHS data oontalnmg Confidential
‘Data between applications, the Contractor altests the applications have been evaluated
by an’ expen knowledgeabte in cyber security and that said appllcatlons encryption
capablhtles ensure secure transmission via the intarnet. -

2, Computer Disks and Porlable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer drsks‘
or portable storage devices, such as.a thumb drive, as a method of lransmlttmg DHHS
idata..

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only emptoy. email to transmit Confidentia! Data if émail -
'i$ encrypted and belng sent 10.:and beéing received 'by email addresses of persons
‘authorized to recgive such information. :

-4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employmg the Web 1o transmit Conf dential Data the
.’_oequr_e; socket layers {SSL)-must be used and the web site must be secure; :SSL’ gncrypts
fdata transmitted via a Web site.

5. [File Hosting Services, dlso known-as File Sharing Sites. End User may not Use file hosting
'services, such as Dropbox or Google | Cloud Storage to transmit Confi denual Data,

6. 'Ground Mail Serwce End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ¢ertified ground
imail wﬂhln the continental U.S. and when sent to a named lndlwdual

7. Laptops and PDA, If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Daté
:5aid devices must be_eﬁcrypted and password-protected.
D%
" ‘ ‘MS
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8 -Open Wiréless Nétworks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless ngtwark. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmutting vla -an open wireless network. >

. or transmlt Conf denllal Dala a vnrtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End ,'
User's mobile. dewce(s) or Iaptop from which information will be transrmtted or accessed

0. SSH Filg Yransfer Protoco! (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End

. User is employlng an SFTP to iransmit Confi dentlal Data, End User will structure the

Folder and access privileges to prevent mappropnate disclosure of information. ‘SFTP:

. folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24- hour
. auto-deletion cycle fi.e. Conﬁdentlal Data will be deleted every 24 hours)

.‘ll:Wreless Devices; Jf End User is transmlllmg Confidential Data via wireless devnces all
data must be encrypted fo prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

il. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will cmly retain the data and any ‘derivative of the data for-the duration of this
Contract, After such tlme thé  Contractor will have 30 days to.destroy the data and any
_ derivative in whatever: form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the' parties must: .
A. Retention )
"1, The Contractor agrees it ‘will nol store, transfer or process data collected in
connection. with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply.in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery Iocatlons

2. The Contracior agrees to ensure proper security momtonng capablmnes are in place
- to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or.
Depariment confidential information for conlractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and .education for its End
Users'in support of protectlng Departmenl conf denfial information.

4, The Contractor agrees-to retain all electromc and hard COpIES of Confidential Data
ina secure location anid idéntified in section IV. A.2

5 The - Contractor ‘agress Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be ‘in @

" FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solutioh and comply with all applicable statutes and
-regulallons regardlng the privacy and Ssecurity. Al servers and devices must have
currentiy-supported ":and hardened Operatmg systems the latest anti-vnral
‘antihacker, antu -Spam, anti-spyware, .and anti-frialware wlilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggresswe mtrusmn-detecluon and firewall protection:

]
N | MS.
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6. The Contractor agrees-to and ensures its oomplete cooperation with the State's
~ Chief Information Officer in the detection 6f -any security vulnerability of the hostmg
mfrastructure 5,

i = I W

—

B. Dispositiorl

1.  Ifthe Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-
contractor systems), the Conractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampsﬁlre data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disasler recovery
operations: When no longer in use, electronic media.containing State of New
Hampshire dala shall be rendered_ unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with mdustry accepted standards for -secure deletion and media
sanitization, or.otherwise physucally destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. §. Department of -
Commerce. The Contractor-will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will prowde wiitlen: cértification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has .
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destructnon

2. Unless 6therwise specut" ed, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies -of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding:

3.. Unless otherwise’ specmed within thirty {30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees fo completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure; also known as seclre.data wiping. '

V. PROCEDUREé FOR SECURITY

A Contractor agrees o safeguard the DHHS Dala received under thls Contract, and any
derivalive data or fi files, as follows:’ ‘ , '

. The Coniractér will maintain proper security controis to protect Departnient confidential
‘mformatlon collected, processed ‘managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
‘services.

-~

2. _The Contractor will malntam pohc:es and procedures to protect Department confldentlal

“information throughout the "information hfecycle “where applicable, (from creation

- “transformatidn, use §torage -and seclire destruclion) regardless of the medla used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc)

. " - DA
o o g wf s
+ . . W
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. The Contractor will maintain. appropridte -authenlication and access controls to

contractor systems that collect, trensmit or store. Department conﬁdentlal information
where apphcable

. The Contractor will ensure prober security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect '

potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Depariment
confidentia! Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provrde regular security awareness and e_clucatio_n,_tor its End Users

in support of protecting'Departrnent confidential information.

. If the Contractor. will be. sub-contfacting any core functions of the engagement

supporting the services for State of Néw Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

.program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectattpns
~and monitoring.compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for

the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

. The’Contractor will work with the Depariient to sign and comply with all applicablé

State of New Hampshire and Depariment system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreemients as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If thé Department determines the Contractor is,a Business Associate pursuant to 45
- CFR 160.103, the Coniractor will - execute a HIPAA Business Associate ‘Agreement

(BAA) with the Department and is responstble for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

. The Contiactor wili'work with the Department at its request to complete a System

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is 10 enable the Depariment and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor ‘engagement.  The sufvey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame_at the Departments discretion-with agreement by
the. Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the' Department énd the Contrablor changes

10. The Contractor will not store, knovwngly or Unknowingly, any Stalé’of New Hampshire
_or Department data offshore or oulside the boundaries of the Untted States unless prior
' -express written consent is abtained from the Information Secunty Off ice Ieadershtp

member within the Department.

“11. Data. Securtty Breach Llablltty Inthe event of any secunty breach Contractor shall make

efforts to invest!gate the causes of the breach promptly take measures to prevent

o ' i [} :
' 1".MS
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13.

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of respanse and recovery from

the- breach including but not |Iﬂ1ll9d to: credit monitoring’, services; mailing costs and
costs associated with website and. telephone call center,serwces necessary due to the

‘breach.

. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulahons regarding the

privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in-all other respects maintaln
the privacy and security of Pl and PHl at a level and scope that is not less than ihe leve!

-and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but-not-limited to,

provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S. C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45C.F.R. §5b) HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160-and 164) that

‘govern protections for individually identifiable heaﬂh Jinformation .and as applicable

under Siate law,

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and

_ physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent

unauthorized uge or access to it. The safeguards musi provide a level and scope of
securily that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire,. Department of information Technology. Refer to

: 'Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Mww.nh.gov/doit/ivendor/index.htm for the

14.

15.

16.

Department of - Information Technology policies, gurdellnes -standards, -and

procurement mformahon relating to vendors

Contraclor agrees to maintain a docurnented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach |mmed|alely, at the emanl addresses provided in Section

‘VI. This includes a confidentia! information breach, computer secumy incident, or
‘suspected breach which affects or includes any State.of New Hampsh!re systems that

connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor musl restnct access to the Confidential Data obtained under.this Contract
‘to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to, perform their official
"duties in connecfion with purposes identified m this Contract '

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users

a. :comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IVA above, implemented
‘to protect Confidential Information that is furnished By DHHS urider this’ Contract
‘from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. .safeguard this information at all times.

c. -ensire thal faptops and other electronic: devnceslmedla containlng PHI PI;or
PFl:are encrypted and password-protected. :

Contractor Initials
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_ send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and bemg goni
to and. bemg received by email addresses of persons, authonzed {0 receive such
information.

ey

e. limit disclosure of the Conf dentlal information to the extent permitied by law:

. "Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
~ data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physlcally and
'technologlcally secure from access by unauthorized persons dufing duly ‘hours
-as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

9. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including :any
denvatwe files containing personally identifiable information, ‘and in sll ‘cases,
such data mus! be encrypted at all times when intransit, at rest, or when stored

©on portable media as required in section. IV above. .

h, inall other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and dlsclosed
usmg appropnate safeguards,-as determined by a risk-based assessment. of the -
circumstances involved.

. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not.be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. -
This applles to credentials used to access the site directly or mdurectly through a
third parly application.

Contractot ‘is responsible for oversight and compliance: of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to canduct orisite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
mctudlng the privacy. and’ secunty requirements provided in herein, HIPAA and. other
applicable laws -and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is’ dusposed
of in accordance with this Contracl. .

V. LOSS REPORTING °

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security "Offi cer of any Secunty
Inicidents and Breaches- lmmedlately. at the_email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle ‘and report Incidents and Breaches mvolwng PHIin
dccordance with the agency's -documented Incident Handling and Breach Notificatiori
procedures and in- aocordance with 42 C.F.R. §§-431.300 - 306. In addition to, and,
notwnhstandmg, Contractor [ comphance with-all applicable oblrgahons and procedures .
Contractor's procedures must also address:how the Contractor will:

1. tdentify Incidents;
2. Déteriing if persondlly identifiable information is ifvolved in Idcidenis;
3. Report suspétted or confirmed Incidents‘as required in this Exhibit or P-37,

Conteactor Illlals
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4.- Identify and conveneé a core response group to deterrmne the risk level of Incidents and :
determine fisk-based responses to Incidents; and )

5. Determine whether Breach notifi catton is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, tnmmg ‘source, and contents from among different options, -and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures

Incidents and/or Breaches' lhat implicate PI must be addressed and reported ‘as'applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359- .C:20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACY
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficei@dhhs.nh.gov B. -
DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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